
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
B. ROLL CALL 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement) 
 none 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. December 11, 2023 Study Session Minutes 
2. December 11, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
3. December 20, 2023 Special Meeting Minutes 

 
F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

none 
 
G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

1. Dennis Hoppe was sworn in to the Library Board on December 19, 2023 in the Clerk’s office. 
 

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.   
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 

 
The public may also submit written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via email to:  
councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior 
to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting. Please note, when 
submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and 
address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
 
I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1.  TXT 23-04: Public Hearing for a Zoning Ordinance text amendment to amend sections 400.760, 400.780, 
400.1190, and 400.2130 in the zoning code.   

2.  REZ 23-02: Public Hearing for a Map Amendment from Core Commercial (CC) to Planned Development  - 
Mixed-Use (PD-M) for properties located at 6630, 6640, 6650, 6654 Delmar Boulevard.  

3.  Liquor License – First Watch Restaurants – 8658 Olive Blvd. 
 

K. CONSENT AGENDA (1 voice vote required) 
1.  Liquor License – First Watch Restaurants – 8658 Olive Blvd. 
2.  Westgate -STP-5402(616), Construction Agreement 
3.  Annual Tree Trimming Project - PR24-04 

 
L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT –  (voice vote on each item as needed) 

1.  SDG Housing Partners - Parkview Place Apartments 
2.  Comprehensive Plan Acceptance and Approval (with amendments) 
3.  University Hills Neighborhood Improvement District (NID)  

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, January 8, 2024 
6:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

 
  
M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  (2nd and 3rd readings – roll call vote required) 

1. BILL  9532  -  AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ZONING CODE SECTIONS 400.760.D, 400.780.E, 
400.1190.B AND 400.2130 OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING OR APPLICABLE 
TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENTS, BY ADDING PROVISIONS ON MINIMUM OFF-STREET PARKING 
AND LOADING SPACES IN ALL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICTS ("PD"), AND PROVISIONS ON 
FLOOR AREA RATIOS, MINIMUM PERIMETER BUFFER AREAS AND SETBACKS AND SCREENING 
IN PLANNED DEVELOPMENT - MIXED USE DISTRICTS ("PD-M") 
  

2. BILL 9533 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 400.070 OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY 
MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, BY AMENDING SAID MAP SO 
AS TO CHANGE THE CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY AT 6630-6654 DELMAR BOULEVARD 
FROM CORE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT ("CC") TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT - MIXED USE 
DISTRICT ("PD-M"). 
 

3. BILL 9534 - AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF A 
TRACT OF LAND TO BE KNOWN AS "LOCAL UNIVERSITY CITY." 

 
N. NEW BUSINESS 
Resolutions   (voice vote required) 

Resolutions  
1.  Resolution 2024-01 – Preliminary Plan Approval – Adoption of a Resolution to approve the Preliminary 

Development Plan for Local University City, also known as the Subtext Development. 
 
Bills   (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 
 

2.  BILL 9535 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ZONING CODE SECTION 400.1260 OF THE UNIVERSITY 
CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO FENCE MATERIALS, BY ADDING PROVISIONS 
PROHIBITING TARP FENCES IN RESIDENTIAL AND PUBLIC ACTIVITY IN RESIDENTIAL AND PUBLIC 
ACTIVITY (“PA”) ZONING DISTRICTS. 

 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION (roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes 
of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 

 
S. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The public may also observe via: 
Live Stream via YouTube: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
Posted January 5, 2024 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ


December 11, 2023 - Study Session Minutes Page 1 of 14

STUDY SESSION  
Permanent Structures in Front Yards 

& 
Comprehensive Plan Update - Session Number 2 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
 6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, December 11, 2023 
5:00 p.m. 

AGENDA 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Study Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, December 11, 2023, Mayor
Terry Crow, called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:

Councilmember Stacy Clay 
Councilmember Aleta Klein 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 
Councilmember Dennis Fuller 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr., Director of 
Planning and Development, John Wagner, Senior Planner, Mary Kennedy, and Planning Commission 
Chair, Peggy Holly. 

2. CHANGES TO REGULAR AGENDA
None

3. PERMANENT STRUCTURES IN FRONT YARDS
Mr. Rose stated Council is being asked to provide direction regarding the execution of codes governing
permanent children's recreational equipment in front yards.

Dr. Wagner stated this discussion has to do with the items pictured in the front yard of 1457 Forest 
Green Court.  Under Zoning Code Section 400.1040(a) (2), children's recreational equipment is 
permitted within the rear yard setback only.   

So, the question being posed to Council is:  are these two playhouses located in the front yard 
“structures or portions of structures" within the meaning of the Zoning Code?  

• If they are not deemed to be structures or a portion thereof, then there is no setback violation in
the front or rear yard.

• If they are considered structures, then they would not be permitted in the front yard.
 To prohibit such items from being located in a front yard, a Zoning Code Text Amendment
 would be required.

Mr. Rose stated staff is seeking confirmation that their interpretation regarding this Section of the Code is 
consistent with the intent of this policy or direction from Council on how the Code should be interpreted. 

E - 1 - 1



December 11, 2023 - Study Session Minutes Page 2 of 14

Councilmember Smotherson posed the following questions to Dr. Wagner: 
Q. How is staff interpreting this Code?
A. Staff does not consider the two playhouses to be the type of structures identified in the Ordinance.
Q. Does that mean they would be permitted in the front yard?
A. Yes.

Councilmember Smotherson stated that even though there are no specifications regarding front yards, 
the Code is pretty clear that children's recreational equipment is only permitted within the rear yard 
setback.  And he believes it's worded that way because typically children's play equipment is located in a 
backyard.  He stated in this case, the playhouses seem to be permanent, so according to the Code, they 
should be considered a structure.  Dr. Wagner stated the uncertainty arises because, unlike a swing set, 
they are temporary in the sense that they are plastic and can be moved.  Councilmember Smotherson 
stated the problem is that they are not being moved. 

Councilmember Klein stated she does not think Council needs to start over-regulating its citizens.  And 
telling them that they cannot put moveable structures in parts of their yard would be imposing too much 
control.  She stated she thinks the spirit of the law is designed to generate good relationships among 
neighbors by providing them with the opportunity to work out any problems they might have.  Not that the 
City should become the mechanism for resolving private disputes that are not prevalent throughout 
multiple neighborhoods.  So, she does not believe Council's involvement in this isolated problem would 
be a good idea. 

Councilmember Clay asked what an Ordinance regulating something like this would be comprised of?  
Dr. Wagner stated that he would have to work with Mr. Mulligan to develop the language and definitions 
for children's recreational equipment.  Councilmember Clay stated there may be instances where certain 
types of equipment would be appropriate in a front yard so he does not think the regulation should be too 
restrictive.  Dr. Wagner stated what he noticed in this particular case, is that when you step out of their 
back door the yard quickly begins to descend, making it somewhat difficult for them to utilize it for 
recreational equipment.  

Mr. Rose stated he believes the direction would be for staff to draft a policy that identifies a 
comprehensive list of children's recreational equipment that should not be installed in a front yard. 

Mr. Mulligan stated the context here is setbacks, and setbacks are linked to structures, which are defined 
in the Code as anything constructed or erected with a fixed location on the ground or attached to 
something having or requiring a fixed location on the ground.   
Under this rule, you would normally not think of a plastic playhouse as being a structure.  Therefore, if 
Council is interested in regulating this type of equipment you might consider doing so through the 
Property Maintenance Code.  Here, you would need to define what shall not be on the premises, any 
prohibited locations, and a period of time for how long these items can remain in those prohibited 
locations.  So, if you decide to go down that road it would require some thought and perhaps, further 
discussions. 

Councilmember Hales stated he searched the minutes to determine if he could find a reference to this 
type of policy question and was unable to find anything of this nature.  But Mr. Mulligan's explanation 
altered his thought process to now believe that this is a slippery slope.  There are all kinds of things in 
people's front yards; especially during this time of year.  So, in his opinion, a complaint coming from one 
party, in one neighborhood, on one street, does not meet the thrush hold that should even warrant 
Council's intervention.  

Mr. Rose stated the only purpose of this discussion was to obtain Council's guidance on whether staff 
should pursue the introduction of a code change that would clarify this issue.  

E - 1 - 2



 

December 11, 2023 - Study Session Minutes   Page 3 of 14 
 

Councilmember McMahon agreed with Councilmember Hales.  When you start trying to define children's 
recreational equipment or what can and cannot be in someone's front yard, you will be going down a 
slippery slope.  Some neighbors might take offense to bikes or skateboards left in the front yard.  So, it's 
a personal preference, not a health and safety issue. 
 
Councilmember Fuller stated that based on the definition of a structure these are clearly portable pieces 
of recreational equipment that are used in numerous City facilities; churches, clinics, and childcare 
centers.  So, he thinks Council should be guided by the Code's definition.   
 
Councilmember Smotherson stated what he would like to make clear is that this complaint is not just 
from one individual, but several elderly residents who have lived in this neighborhood for years; accepted 
and followed the rules, and simply want their new neighbors to follow those same rules.  And even 
though he would agree that based on the Code's definition this equipment would not typically be 
construed as a structure, it is permanent because it has remained in this front yard for four years.  He 
stated these are the issues he believes his colleagues are missing and that need to be addressed by 
clarifying this Section of the Code and enforcing it.    
 
Mayor Crow stated he does not believe the Council is overlooking or missing anything; they are simply 
disagreeing with the proposition that this should be considered a structure.  So, while you can certainly 
make an argument about permanency, most would probably say that a toy; no matter how long it sits 
there, is not permanent.  Mayor Crow stated in his opinion, this is a dispute among neighbors that 
frankly, does not rise to the level of asking Council to expend City resources on.   
   

4. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE - SESSION NUMBER 2 
Mr. Rose stated this presentation is intended to be the final briefing on the Comprehensive Plan 
Update. 
 

Dr. Wagner stated tonight's update will be focused on the following: 
• Goals, objectives, and actions  
• Character-based approach to land use  
• Implementation   
• Evaluating fiscal and staffing impacts  
• Discussion 

 
Goals 
There are a total of 112 action items and 42 are discussed in the presentation. 
Goal A - Preserve and Enhance Great Places; 21 actions 

• Focuses primarily on physical development, existing character, neighborhoods, and sustainable 
development 

• Community engagement and technical analysis findings:  
 Current zoning code focuses on the separation of uses 
 Disproportionate challenges with vacancies in the 3rd Ward 
 Tree canopy is strong in neighborhoods, weak in commercial areas 
 Older building stock  
 Impact of private subdivisions; helps preserve character and identity, but can contribute to 

a disconnected community 
 
Mayor Crow asked if the disproportionate vacancies in the 3rd Ward referred to rentals or owner-
occupied homes?  Dr. Wagner stated this reference mainly refers to homes, but there are a few 
commercial areas along Olive.  Mayor Crow asked if the homes were owner-occupied or rentals?  Dr. 
Wagner stated they are probably leaning more toward vacant rentals. 
 
 

E - 1 - 3



 

December 11, 2023 - Study Session Minutes   Page 4 of 14 
 

Action Step:  Use proactive measures to promote development that aligns with the plan 
1) Update the zoning code to support the implementation of this plan. 
2) Encourage mixed-use communities where people enjoy easy access to jobs and services in 

connection with the Future Character and Land Use map. 
 
Action Step:  Proactively manage vacancies 

1) Prioritize City control of vacant parcels (those either suitable for development or those identified 
with potential to alleviate flooding) when possible, such as land banking.  
 Infill development 
 Lot sales to property owners (Mow-to-Own program) 
 Reuse for stormwater mitigation (detention basins) 

2) Strengthen the City’s existing vacant building registration program.  
 
Action Step:  Create attractive, cohesive, compact, and diverse residential areas throughout the City 

1) Encourage residential infill and redevelopment to restore and/or create more vibrant, walkable 
neighborhoods.  

2) Promote neighborhood activity nodes in parts of the city where there are currently not many. 
 

Action Step:  Remove barriers that limit vibrant commercial and mixed-use districts and support 
neighborhood-scale commercial 

1) Revise car-oriented standards such as parking minimums, to encourage alternatives to car-based 
transportation, especially in higher-density, mixed-use areas.  

2) Revise dimensional regulations (e.g., height, setbacks) and permitted uses in the zoning code to 
allow more compact development in mixed-use areas  

 
Goal B - Advance Shared Prosperity; 17 actions 

• Focuses on access to economic and wealth-building opportunities, building on economic 
development strengths 

• Community engagement and technical analysis findings:  
 Household incomes vary greatly by neighborhood 
 Stark disparities in residential property value  
 About 50/50 owner vs. renter population 
 Sales tax performance and residential population are related 
 Existing TIF districts are a great opportunity for making investments in the community 

 
Action Step:  Build upon existing development momentum 

1) Focus development attention on the creation of catalyst areas; Markets at Olive 
2) Facilitate and encourage mixed-use residential development across from Heman Park on the 

north side of Olive Boulevard 
 
Mr. Rose stated he would like a clear understanding of whether this Plan prohibits rezoning the City-
owned parcel at Olive and Midland, or prevents Council from pursuing some form of economic 
development?  Dr. Wagner stated he believes that this parcel is listed on the Land Use Map as a green 
space.  So, while the Comprehensive Plan is a stalwart guide, in his opinion, there is nothing in it that 
would prohibit Council from rezoning this parcel for development as long as it is not deemed to be in a 
floodplain. 
 
Action Step:  Leverage incentives to support desired economic development in key locations 

1) Develop a transparent policy for providing municipal incentives that promote the goals of this plan 
2) Improve the City’s fiscal resilience by diversifying land uses and development 

 
 
 

E - 1 - 4



 

December 11, 2023 - Study Session Minutes   Page 5 of 14 
 

Action Step:  Strengthen and support the labor force and entrepreneurship 
1) Partner with national and regional workforce development agencies and the University City 

School District to implement workforce development strategies. 
2) Improve the City’s fiscal resilience by diversifying land uses and development 

 
Goal C - Connect Community; 22 actions 

• Focuses on improving mobility, walkability, social cohesion, and increasing civic involvement 
• Community engagement and technical analysis findings:  

 The street grid was designed to support a larger population than we have today 
 47% of traffic crashes on Olive result in an injury, compared to 27% in the rest of 

University City; work with MoDOT to create a Road Diet 
 Many gaps in sidewalk network and bicycle lanes/trails, but we have good plans to 

improve these networks 
 Transit routes have low-frequency 

 
Action Step:  Create “equity of mobility” within University City 

1) Implement a street and sidewalk repair and improvement program 
2) Identify and prioritize low-cost improvements at key locations that are currently unsafe for those 

getting around without a car 
3) Complete the Centennial Greenway as a full contiguous trail through University City 

 
Action Step:  Encourage walking and biking as legitimate modes of transportation 

1) Increase housing supply in locations with potential for good access by biking and walking so 
those without vehicles can live in areas already served by these modes  

2) Create demonstration projects and events that showcase small-scale safety improvements 
 
Action Step:  Support and coordinate with regional initiatives that improve connectivity, including public 
transit 

1) Collaborate with MODOT to reconfigure Olive Boulevard to improve pedestrian and bicyclist 
safety and an improved environment for businesses in the corridor 

 
Action Step:  Encourage civic participation, mentoring, and volunteerism 

1) Create a youth involvement initiative to empower University City’s youth in conjunction with U City 
schools, churches, and other community organizations 

2) Establish a volunteer Community Leadership or Neighborhood Liaison program 
 
Goal D - Leverage Assets; 14 actions 

• Actions capitalize on the City’s diversity, rich history, and amenities 
• Community engagement and technical analysis findings:  

 Historic preservation efforts are concentrated in the southeast corner of the City 
 Most residents are within a ¼ mile of a U City park, and almost all are within a ½ mile, but 

there’s a desire to provide more recreational activities evenly throughout the City 
 Community facilities are also located evenly throughout the City 

 
Action Step:  Enhance the community’s parks and recreational facilities 
to meet the needs of all residents. 

1) Update the University City Parks Master Plan to include a maintenance management plan for 
parks, prioritizing strategic investment in maintenance, programming, and naturalized spaces 

2) Create Safe Routes to Parks and Safe Routes to Schools plans to improve pedestrian and 
bicycle access 

 
 
 

E - 1 - 5



 

December 11, 2023 - Study Session Minutes   Page 6 of 14 
 

Action Step:  Enhance the experience for visitors to University City. 
1) Improve gateway locations and neighborhood nodes with landscaping, amenities, signage, public 

art, or other features; both ends of Olive & Delmar 
2) Continue to expand and promote the Explore U City website, per the 2021 Economic 

Development Strategy 
 
Goal E - Strengthen Livability; 20 actions 

• Increasing and improving housing options across all neighborhoods, proactively addressing flood 
mitigation 

• Community engagement and technical analysis findings:  
 Flood damage and risk threatens the livability of the community 
 Medium- to high-intensity land cover; (impermeable surface) 
 Existing property maintenance regulations need to be strengthened to improve livability 
 Activity nodes; (areas of small commercial activity that integrate amenities and services in 

neighborhoods) are cherished by the community, and there is a desire to plan for new 
nodes in neighborhoods that lack them 

 
Action Step:  Protect each neighborhood’s distinctive character while supporting compatible new 
developments. 

1) Evaluate short-term rental regulations; currently prohibited 
2) Investigate establishing and/or supporting an existing community development entity(s) to 

address housing affordability, vacancy, maintenance, and stability in University City  
 
Action Step:  Promote housing variety and affordability to support a range of household types, lifestyles, 
and demographic group needs. 

1) Develop and plan for allowing Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) 
2) Modernize or remove definitions of family or household relationships in the zoning ordinance to 

reflect changing household composition and lifestyles 
3) Promote housing variety and affordability to support a range of household types, lifestyles, and 

demographic group needs 
4) Protect non-homeowner citizens (renters) through such measures as: 

 Improving the rental inspection program to ensure safe, habitable, and fair housing 
 Creating a renter protection program 
 Adopting a source of income discrimination ordinance  

 
Action Step:  Address stormwater management through proactive, regional flood mitigation planning. 

1) Discourage additional new development in flood-prone areas and restrict any new development 
within the floodplain 

2) Incrementally convert high-flood risk areas into open spaces that are designed to accommodate 
stormwater, provided that maintenance and security can be addressed 

3) Encourage the use of Low Impact Development (LID) strategies to reduce stormwater runoff and 
improve water quality  

4) Consider requiring disclosure of flood history for rentals and home purchases, as suggested by 
SEMA, possibly as part of the occupancy permit 

 
Mr. Rose noted that some of the language within this section seems to imply that the Mayor and Council 
will adopt recommendations from the Stormwater Commission and the Housing and Third Ward 
Revitalization Task Force, when in reality, neither set of recommendations have ever been presented to 
Council for review.  Therefore, with the assistance of Mr. Mulligan, his intent would be to modify this 
language in a manner that does not anticipate Council's intentions, but assets their option to approve the 
recommendations once they have been presented for review.     
 

E - 1 - 6



 

December 11, 2023 - Study Session Minutes   Page 7 of 14 
 

Dr. Wagner agreed that the way the Comprehensive Plan is currently written presumes that the 
recommendations have already been adopted, and should be revised.    
 
Mr. Rose asked Mr. Mulligan if Council could approve these modifications to the language when it 
considers the Plan Update since it was included in the original plan they adopted, or if there was a 
requirement for it to go back to the Planning Commission first?  Mr. Mulligan stated the Charter does not 
prohibit Council from making recommendations or revisions to the Commission's approved Plan, but the 
best practice may be to send it back to the Plan Commission for further consideration.  
 Mr. Rose stated since there is no legal requirement, he intends to expedite the approval 
process by putting it on the Council's Agenda with a recommendation that they modify the language 
during their considerations.   
 
Dr. Wagner asked Mr. Rose if he wanted to include these modifications with some of the other changes 
that have to be made by the Commission, like Olive/Midland?  Mr. Rose stated that they could be.  Dr. 
Wagner stated the intent is to conduct a virtual meeting with the Commission before Council's January 
22nd Meeting.  
 
Mr. Rose stated if it is acceptable to the Mayor and Council, his intent is to recommend that the 
Commission modify the language to reflect that Council can approve the Stormwater Master Plan and 
Task Force recommendations as presented.   
 
Mr. Mulligan informed Mr. Rose that his recommendation should include the Flood Mitigation Plan; E.3.2, 
the Stormwater Master Plan; E.3.1, and the Task Force Plan; E.1.2. 
 
Mr. McMahon stated he also noticed that Council is being asked to adopt a Source of Income 
Discrimination Ordinance.  However, after the H.R. Commission presented its recommendation to 
Council the Ordinance was never introduced because of the pushback received from landlords who did 
not want to be told how they had to run their businesses.  So ultimately, the process was circumvented. 
 
Mayor Crow stated before any decision is made, a review of those meeting minutes might be helpful in 
adding a little background on this Ordinance. 
 
 Goal F - Improve Collaboration; 18 actions 

• Improving effectiveness, collaboration, and communication within the government, with the 
community, and with external partners 

• Community engagement and technical analysis findings:  
 U City has more boards and commissions than is typical for a City of its size 
 Enrollment in public schools reflects the City’s racial segregation and can exacerbate 

inequities 
 A high amount of institutional, nonprofit, and governmental property ownership 
 Wash U is the largest property owner in U City by assessed value, but the University has 

a higher share of its landholdings in St. Louis City and unincorporated County 
 

Action Step:  Improve communication and cooperation with adjacent communities. 
1) Collaborate with neighboring communities to strengthen connections and advance shared 

development opportunities along borders. 
 
Dr. Wagner stated he and Ms. Kennedy have met with their counterparts in Olivette and Creve Coeur to 
talk about Olive Boulevard. 
 
Action Step:  Strengthen the partnership with The School District of University City to enhance the 
reputations of both the City and District. 

E - 1 - 7



 

December 11, 2023 - Study Session Minutes   Page 8 of 14 
 

1) Evaluate the assets and infrastructure of the City and The School District of University City to 
determine where resources can be leveraged by both 

2) Establish a joint branding strategy for The School District of University City and the City of 
University City. 

 
Action Step:  Develop additional partnerships with Washington University 
to address areas of mutual interest. 

1) Establish a more deliberate partnership with Washington University focused on strategic, mutually 
beneficial developments and investments in the Loop 

 
Action Step:  Improve intra-governmental coordination and cooperation. 

1) Evaluate options for technology platforms to improve collaboration and sharing of information 
across City departments 

2) Conduct a review of all City boards and commissions to ensure adequate, but not duplicative, 
responsibilities, and sufficient staffing capacity  

 
Ms. Kennedy stated all of the items presented by Dr. Wagner referred to policies, programs, and 
potential projects the City could engage in to work towards the goals that were outlined.  But another 
important component of a Comprehensive Plan is a future Land Use Map.  This map creates a guide for 
the City to evaluate changes to the Zoning Code or the rezoning of specific properties to make sure it is 
moving in the direction agreed upon within the Plan.  Another important component of development is the 
physical characteristics, which can have a significant impact on how people embrace that property. 
 
Future Character and Land Use Map 
Future Character & Land Use Map is a tool for guiding future development: 

• To assist the Plan Commission, Council, and staff will review development proposals so that 
future development conforms to the desired character in different parts of the City 

• To provide guidance to developers regarding the City’s expectations for quality and 
characteristics of development 

• To provide predictability for residents, business owners, and others with respect to the kind of 
development they can expect to be approved by the City 

• To provide a common, citywide understanding of where and how University City should change 
over time 

• To serve as a foundation for zoning code changes and design guidelines, including the possibility 
of additional zoning standards that better regulate the physical form and the quality of the public 
realm  

 
Land Use vs. Character 
Land Use        

1. Focuses on uses; (residential, commercial, etc.), not type and quality of development 
2. Building form, street patterns, and other aspects of the look and feel of places are not defined 
3. Encourages a separation of land uses in the zoning code 

 
Character 

1. Reflects not just the use but also the qualities of a place; (look and feel) 
2. Outlines the intent for how properties are treated; (building form, land uses, etc.) 
3. Can be a basis for form-based standards in the zoning code 

 
 The Loop is a great example of a mixed-use neighborhood 
 A form-based code focuses on character; i.e., size, setbacks, and architectural standards 

 
 

E - 1 - 8



 

December 11, 2023 - Study Session Minutes   Page 9 of 14 
 

Same Land Use, Different Character 
• Two images of multi-family developments with diverse character 

 One development is located closer to the street, allowing residents to feel a sense of 
connection 

 The other development is setback further from the street with a circular driveway which 
diminishes that sense of connection 

  
 
Same Land Use, Different Character 

• Two images of office buildings with diverse character 
 

  
 
 
 

E - 1 - 9



 

December 11, 2023 - Study Session Minutes   Page 10 of 14 
 

 
 
Displays existing land uses 
 

 Primarily residential, consisting of traditional, suburban, compact, and activity-
center characteristics 

 
 Within those character types is a description of the appropriate types of land uses, 

the forum, and the quality of development that each area should take on 
 
Mr. Rose posed the following questions to Ms. Kennedy: 
Q.  Is this map recommending that the City rezone properties without the approval of property 
owners?   
A.  No, it does not recommend the rezoning of properties.  Its purpose is to provide the City with a guide 
to determine whether a proposed rezoning for a permitted use reflects the intent of the Plan. 
Q.  Does the map propose zoning changes for any parcels along the Olive Boulevard Corridor 
that are a part of this Plan or future Zoning Code Updates? 
A.  No.  The vast majority of land uses for Olive are commercial, with a few medium-density residential 
areas and mixed-use developments.  The character types provide a better description of when these 
uses are appropriate. 
 

E - 1 - 10



 

December 11, 2023 - Study Session Minutes   Page 11 of 14 
 

ACP TeamCity Council Work Session University City Comprehensive Plan Update

Activity Center + 
Loop Overlay

Community 
Corridor

Flood Prone 
Overlay

Compact 
Neighborhood

Traditional 
Neighborhood

 
 
Community Corridor:  A smaller scale commercial when compared to regional scale commercial 
districts like the Markets at Olive. 
Flood Prone Overlay:  Since existing buildings within this floodplain have significantly contributed to 
issues with flooding, the Plan recommends that the City use a sharper pencil when looking at future 
developments; perhaps, by developing higher standards than those currently being imposed by MSD. 
Loop Overlay:  The Loop overlay reflects a much denser environment than other mixed-use areas in the 
City, like the ones at Vernon and Midland. 
Compact Neighborhood:  A denser residential end-use, i.e., four-story apartments, duplexes, and 20 to 
60-unit apartments. 
Traditional Neighborhood:  The vast majority of land use in the City reflects different needs for each 
resident, i.e., single-family homes, duplexes, and accessory dwelling units.  The Plan recommends 
taking corrective measures to preserve these areas.   
 
Ms. Kennedy stated even though they are places people love, streets like Delmar and North and South 
are non-conforming and do not reflect the City's character.  The Plan recommends the need to strike a 
balance when attempting to achieve compliance with infill development opportunities and neighborhood 
nodes that are closer to the street, denser, have mixed-uses, and activity centers. 
 
Character types define dimensional qualities in addition to land uses 

 
 
  

E - 1 - 11



 

December 11, 2023 - Study Session Minutes   Page 12 of 14 
 

Traditional Neighborhood 
Photos of each character type can be found within the Plan 

• Most prevalent character type 
• Primarily single-family, but also incorporates “missing middle” along major corridors and near 

activity nodes 
• Preserve existing neighborhood character 
• Infill development must complement and enhance 

 
Compact Neighborhood 

• Areas where denser residential exists; Avenir; Crown Center; senior living 
• Loop - North & South Delmar & I-170  
• Encourage more mixing of uses to improve walkability 
• Primary uses: Multi-family, Specialty Residential; (Senior Living, etc.) 

 Allowing renters in high-quality residential developments can be beneficial to the City and 
business owners 

• Secondary uses: Neighborhood Commercial 
 
Community Corridor 

• Smaller-scale commercial development along Olive 
• Provide services and amenities to nearby neighborhoods 
• Promote connectivity and a more walkable pattern; Road Diet 
• Primary uses: Community/Neighborhood Commercial, Office, Civic/Institutional 
• Secondary uses: Multi-family, Open Space 

 
Activity Center 

• Mixed-use areas that integrate places to live, work, and shop 
• Existing: Loop, neighborhood nodes; (e.g., Delmar & Midland) 
• Future: Olive (between 81st and Mt. Olive/Groby), Olive (north of Heman Park) 
• Consolidate surface parking 
• Improve connectivity  
 

Ms. Kennedy stated although there is a desire to have them, these types of mixed-use areas were not 
integrated into existing neighborhoods located in the 3rd Ward.  There is, however, a potential to use 
parts of Olive where the north and south connections are safe. 
 
Flood Prone Overlay 

• Within FEMA floodplains or that have previously been prone to flooding 
• Focus on policies, programs, and projects to reduce future flood risk 
• Minimize new development 
• Utilize low-impact development strategies 

 
Loop Activity Center Overlay 

• Promote higher density, infill development, and redevelopment 
• Buildings up to 10 stories 

 
Framework Map 
Separate from the Future Land Use and Character Map, this map takes two previously designed plans 
and prioritizes them along places that have existing activity centers.  

1. Synthesizes previous pedestrian and bicycle plans 
 St. Louis County Action Plan for Walking and Biking; completed in 2021 
 U City's Pedestrian and Bicycle Master Plan; completed in 2013 

E - 1 - 12



 

December 11, 2023 - Study Session Minutes   Page 13 of 14 
 

2. Prioritizes routes that connect to important destinations 
 Schools 
 Neighborhood nodes 
 Parks 
 City Facilities 

3. Complements the FCLU Map 
4. Designed to guide Capital Improvement Plans 

 
Ms. Kennedy stated despite the difficulties associated with a lack of existing commercial developments; 
this map also identifies potential neighborhood nodes north of Olive. 
 
Implementation 

ACP TeamCity Council Work Session University City Comprehensive Plan Update    
How staff intends to look at managing the plan going forward. 
 
Dr. Wagner stated the Commission and staff will develop a timeline for putting an Implementation Plan 
together.   
 
Evaluating Fiscal and Staffing Impacts 
Dr. Wagner stated it is important that the fiscal impacts of the Plan be reviewed to make sure there are 
no surprises.  So, he will be working with the City Manager to draft an RFP for a consultant to look at 
both issues.   
 
Mr. Rose stated he intends to present the Comprehensive Plan to Council for final consideration after the 
revisions have been made by the Planning Commission.  
And whenever it is deemed necessary, a fiscal impact analysis will also be conducted on the Stormwater 
Master Plan, the Housing and Third Ward Revitalization Plan, and any new plans that come to fruition.   
 
Councilmember Clay asked if staff had a sense of the population size this Plan is predicated on?  Dr. 
Wagner stated this issue has come up numerous times, and generally speaking, he thinks it 
contemplates servicing the same population that exists today.  Mr. Clay stated this Plan extends far into 
the future, and the one thing that concerns him is that as it moves forward there may be fewer people 
and fewer resources to draw from.  Today, it's conceptual, and while U City seems to have leveled off, 
the truth is we are seeing precipitous drops in birthrates throughout the metropolitan area.  So, that might 
be something to think about as you move forward into the implementation phase.  Dr. Wagner stated 
there may be ways to address the so-called "silver tsunami", by looking at ways to keep our seniors in 
the community, either by living with their children or in a senior housing complex.   
 

E - 1 - 13



 

December 11, 2023 - Study Session Minutes   Page 14 of 14 
 

Councilmember Smotherson questioned whether the Plan provided any action steps on how to 
proactively manage vacant properties?  An excellent example is the building that housed Seafood City; 
how long should we allow that to remain vacant?  Dr. Wagner stated the Plan does not preclude Council 
from taking specific actions.  And something he has thought about is strengthening some of the 
Ordinances to accelerate some of the actions that can be taken. 
 
Ms. Holly stated the creation of this Plan has been the focus of the Plan Commission for two years.  They 
are a dedicated group of remarkably intelligent and knowledgeable commissioners, who have spent a lot 
of time studying history, policies, and examples of best practices from successful communities around 
the country.  So, after listening to some of the discussions about several of the overarching issues like 
demographic trends and long-term expectations, she would like to note a couple of things:   

• The prior Plan adopted in 2005, talked very specifically about making major updates to the 
Comprehensive Plan every five years.  It is time for an update. 

• The prior Plan also encouraged new housing developments with mixed uses and supported 
pedestrian-oriented activities; which was Priority No. 4 on a scale of 1 to 4.   And yet, in 2023, U 
City High School students told the Commission that it was not safe to bike to school because their 
streets were not user-friendly.  The current Plan puts that goal squarely in front of the community.  
It's time for us to accept responsibility for a comprehensive view of our streets, transportation, 
and housing. 

• By reviewing St. Louis County's current tax database the Commission learned that in 2022 
mixed-use properties within U City were valued at approximately 40% higher than commercial 
properties on a per-acre basis.  That led them to the conclusion that compact neighborhoods, 
community corridors, and activity centers proposed by the Plan have the potential to increase 
property values. 

• The Commission also conducted significant research regarding the City's history of flooding.  
That research uncovered MSD's reports of flooding that went back to 1957, and presentations 
dating back to 2014 that were made to this Council.  So, the addition of impermeable surfaces in 
close proximity to the River des Peres has put a lot of folks in the way of nature. 
 

Ms. Holly stated the Plan is not perfect; it is not a revision of the zoning code, and it is not a simple 
restructuring of the 2005 Plan, it is truly comprehensive in the sense that it addresses traffic, parks, 
walking, cycling, stormwater, and zoning.  But like any plan, it is only as good as the commitment to 
implement it.  No one is clairvoyant, and the future will undoubtedly bring circumstances that no one 
today, could have foreseen.  But that does not mean you should stop planning and striving to implement 
those plans.  We do the best we can until we know better.  So, it's time for U City to commit to 
implementing this Plan.   
 
Dr. Wagner stated he is aware that the Land Use Map might be somewhat overwhelming, so if Council 
would prefer, he could look into getting a 3 x 4 foot copy that each member could hang on the wall.   
 

5. ADJOURNMENT   
Mayor Crow thanked everyone for this presentation and adjourned the Study Session at 6:26 p.m. 

 
 

LaRette Reese 
City Clerk, MRCC 

 

E - 1 - 14



 December 11, 2023 - Regular Session Minutes Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, December 11,
2023, Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:34 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:

Councilmember Stacy Clay 
Councilmember Aleta Klein 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 

` Councilmember Dennis Fuller 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson  

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose, and City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr. 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Hearing no changes to the Agenda, Councilmember Hales moved to approve, it was seconded
by Councilmember Klein, and the motion carried unanimously.

D. PROCLAMATIONS - (Acknowledgement)
None 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. November 27, 2023, Meeting Minutes were moved by Councilmember Fuller, it was

seconded by Councilmember Hales, and the motion carried unanimously with the exception
of Councilmember McMahon.

F. APPOINTMENTS TO  BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
1. Dennis Hoppe is nominated to the Library Board as a fill-in by Councilmember Aleta Klein, it

was seconded by Councilmember Smotherson and the motion carried unanimously.
2. Karen Bernstein is nominated to the School District to the Economic Development Retail

Sales Tax Board, replacing George Lenard, by Mayor Crow, it was seconded by
Councilmember Smotherson and the motion carried unanimously.

3. Matthew Bellows is nominated to the School District for reappointment to the Economic
Development Retail Sales Tax Board by Mayor Crow, it was seconded by Councilmember
Hales and the motion carried unanimously.

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
None 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, December 11, 2023 
6:30 p.m. 

E - 2 - 1



 

 December 11, 2023 - Regular Session Minutes   Page 2 of 4 
 

 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed)  Scott Regan (written) 

Procedures for submitting comments for Citizen Participation and Public Hearings:  
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.  
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 
 
Written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.  Comments 
may be sent via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. 
– Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments 
will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting.  
 
Please note that when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also 
note whether your comment is on an agenda or a non-agenda item.  If a name and address are not 
provided, the comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
 
Tom Sullivan, 751 Syracuse, U City, MO 
Mr. Sullivan stated as the New Year approaches he thinks Council should consider the 
efficiencies in City services that are not being addressed. 

•  Non-functional streetlights throughout the City 
•  The entrance to the parking lot at Kingsland near Delmar is in disarray 
•  The Kingsland median from Delmar to Vernon is in disarray 
•  Failure to regularly sweep City streets 
•  The appearance of the Loop 
•  Utility wires hanging down in various parts of the City 
•  Repair of The Loop North sidewalk 
•  The deteriorating fountain at Lewis Park 
•  The deteriorating banks around the pond at Lewis Park 
•  Numerous park benches need to be repainted 
•  Excessive vacancies in The Loop 

  
 Mr. Sullivan stated when the Costco development was being discussed the main driver 
was the unique way it would fund revitalization of the 3rd Ward.  And while the 3rd Ward 
Housing and Revitalization Task Force has been meeting for some time to provide a framework 
for how these funds should be spent, several of its members believe they are being under-
utilized and have expressed concerns about their intended purpose.  A consultant and 
ambassadors have been hired; a logo and sweatshirt have been designed; surveys are 
constantly being handed out; Phase I activities are concluded; Phase II has begun, and Phase 
III is scheduled to start in February, yet after fourteen months there has not been one single 
improvement in the 3rd Ward. 
 A couple of months ago, U City's Former Community Development Director, Rosalyn 
Williams, said the City is reneging on its promise of 10 million dollars of TIF funding for this 
Ward.  She said, "The sleight of hand by the City Manager will forego housing value recovery 
and wealth generation for residents of the ward."  So, it seems like the revitalization of the 3rd 
Ward is another area Council needs to keep a close watch on in the New Year. 
 

I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. Public Hearing:  Liquor License for Wallis Petroleum (On the Run), 7360 Forsyth 
 

Mayor Crow opened the Public Hearing at 6:40 p.m., and after acknowledging that no written or 
oral requests to speak had been received, the hearing was closed at 6:40 p.m. 

E - 2 - 2

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


 

 December 11, 2023 - Regular Session Minutes   Page 3 of 4 
 

 
K. CONSENT AGENDA - (1 voice vote required) 

1. Liquor License – Wallis Petroleum (On the Run) -  7360 Forsyth 
2. Barracuda Network Defense Agreement  
3. EDRST Funding Request - LSBD 
4. Record Scanning Project – HR Files 
 

Councilmember McMahon moved to approve Items 1 through 4 of the Consent Agenda, it was 
seconded by Councilmember Hales and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT - (Voice vote on each item as needed) 
None 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - (Roll call vote required on 2nd and 3rdreadings) 
None 

N. NEW BUSINESS 
 Resolutions - (Voice vote required) 
 Resolutions 
  None 
 Bills - (No vote required on introduction and 1st reading) 
  None 
 

O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 
1.  Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2.  Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3.  Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes 
4.  Other Discussions/Business 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Frank Ollendorff, 8128 Cornell Court, U City, MO 
Mr. Ollendorff stated he hopes tonight's comments regarding the Olive Boulevard Streetscape 
Plan will be more successful than his previous remarks.   
 In 1999 the City's Comprehensive Plan recognized that completion of The Loop was a 
great success and that the City's next major project should be Olive Boulevard.  Council's 
instruction to the City Manager was to make the development of a plan for the infrastructure on 
Olive his number one priority and to find the funds to install sidewalks, trees, and pedestrian 
lighting modeled after The Loop.  Funding was obtained through the receipt of two federal 
grants totaling 1 million dollars each.  When approximately 20% of the work was completed, the 
City manager recommended, and Council, along with its residents adopted the concept of 
establishing an Economic Development Retail Sales Tax to complete the project.  Council's 
commitment to issue a municipal bond and use the EDRST to complete Olive Boulevard passed 
with a 2 to 1 vote, and an example of the work that was performed can be seen at the Aldi's site, 
Costco site, and the intersection of Hanley and Olive. 
 As a result of these actions, Mr. Ollendorff stated he would urge Council to advise staff that 
this continues to be their number one priority and direct them to move forward with this project. 
(Mr. Ollendorff provided Council with copies of the minutes related to the establishment of 
EDRST funds and the Olive Design Guidelines adopted in 2009.)   
 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Councilmember Smotherson stated as a regular guest of Centennial Commons he is 
disappointed by the lack of progress being made to bring this facility back to being fully 
operational. Nowadays, this once vibrant facility has almost become irrelevant because people 
have started patronizing other facilities with saunas, whirlpools, and steam rooms.   
 

E - 2 - 3



 

 December 11, 2023 - Regular Session Minutes   Page 4 of 4 
 

And even though these kinds of amenities are not a part of the City's plans, he hopes that next 
year any repairs or aesthetic improvements that do not fall under FEMA will be on the staff's 
agenda so that after the lower level and gym are repaired there will be no reason; barring a 
natural disaster, for it to be closed again.  He then wished everyone a happy holiday. 
 
Mayor Crow acknowledged Councilmember Clay's birthday and thanked him for being in 
attendance. 
 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION - (Roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal 
actions, causes of action, or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential 
or privileged communications between a public governmental body or its representatives or 
attorneys. 
 

Councilmember Hales moved to close the Regular Session and go into a Closed Session, it was 
seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember 
Fuller, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 

 
S. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Crow thanked everyone for their participation and closed the Regular Session at 6:52 p.m. 
to go into a Closed Session on the second floor.  The Closed Session reconvened in an open 
session at 7:23 p.m.  
 
 
LaRette Reese 
City Clerk, MRCC 

E - 2 - 4



E - 2 - 5





December 20, 2023 – Special Session Minutes  Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER

At the Special Session of the City Council of University City held virtually on Monday, December
20, 2023, Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:
Councilmember Stacy Clay 
Councilmember Aleta Klein 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose, and City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Hearing no changes to the Agenda, Councilmember McMahon moved to approve, it was seconded
by Councilmember Clay, and the motion carried unanimously.

D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement)
None

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
None

F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
None

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
None

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed)
The public may also submit written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent
via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will
be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public
online following the meeting. Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if
your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in
the official record.

I. COUNCIL COMMENTS

J. PUBLIC HEARINGS

K. CONSENT AGENDA (1 voice vote required)

1. MS Office 365 Renewal

Councilmember Hales moved to approve Item 1 of the Consent Agenda, it was seconded by 
Councilmember Klein and the motion carried unanimously. 

L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT –  (voice vote on each item as needed)

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  (2nd and 3rd readings – roll call vote required)
None 

 SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 
VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 

Wednesday, December, 2023 
5:30 p.m. 

E - 3 - 1

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


 

December 20, 2023 – Special Session Minutes   Page 2 of 2 
 

 
N. NEW BUSINESS 
Resolutions   (voice vote required) 
 None 
Bills   (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 
  Introduced by Councilmember Klein 

1. BILL  9532  -  AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ZONING CODE SECTIONS 400.760.D, 400.780.E, 
400.1190.B AND 400.2130 OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING OR APPLICABLE 
TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENTS, BY ADDING PROVISIONS ON MINIMUM OFF-STREET PARKING 
AND LOADING SPACES IN ALL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICTS ("PD"), AND PROVISIONS ON 
FLOOR AREA RATIOS, MINIMUM PERIMETER BUFFER AREAS AND SETBACKS AND SCREENING 
IN PLANNED DEVELOPMENT - MIXED USE DISTRICTS ("PD-M") 
 

Introduced by Councilmember Hales 
2. BILL 9533 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 400.070 OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY 

MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, BY AMENDING SAID MAP SO 
AS TO CHANGE THE CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY AT 6630-6654 DELMAR BOULEVARD 
FROM CORE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT ("CC") TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT - MIXED USE 
DISTRICT ("PD-M"). 
 

Introduced by Councilmember McMahon 
3. BILL 9534 - AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF A 

TRACT OF LAND TO BE KNOWN AS "LOCAL UNIVERSITY CITY." 
 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION (roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes 
of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 
 

Councilmember Hales moved to close the Regular Session and go into a Closed Session, it was seconded by 
Councilmember Clay. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Clay, and Mayor 
Crow. 
Nays:  None. 

 
S. ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Crow thanked everyone for their participation and closed the Special Session at 5:35 p.m. to 
go into a Closed Session on the second floor.  The Closed Session reconvened in an open session 
at 6:01 p.m.  

 
 

LaRette Reese 
City Clerk, MRCC 

E - 3 - 2



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

PH20240108-01

TXT 23-04: Public Hearing for a Zoning Ordinance text amendment to to amend sections 400.760, 400.780, 400.1190, 
and 400.2130 in the zoning code.  

John L. Wagner Planning and Development

Public Hearing no

NA

N/A

N/A

N/A

Attached is the notice from Missouri Lawyers Media, indicating that the notice was published 
in their December 22, 2023 publication. 

Economic Development, Community Quality of Life.

City Manager, Gregrory Rose January 8, 2024

J - 1 - 1



1400 S. Highway Drive,
Fenton,MO, 63026,USA
314-421-1880, https://molawyersmedia.com/news/st-louis/

PROOF OF PURCHASE
COPY FOR YOUR RECORDS ONLY, THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE OR
AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

University City, City Of,Account ID 64741
6801 Delmar Blvd,
St. Louis,MO,631303104

ADVERTISER

Please Read Carefully
is not responsible for errors or

omissions after the First Run Date. If any errors exist in your ad,
please contact us at .
Attorney's placing legal advertisements are responsible for
payment of same.

The Countian (St Louis)

314-421-1880

Purchase Order #:
Insertion Order #: 2566592
Placement: The Countian (St Louis)
Index: Government
Category: Hearings and Minutes
First Issue: 12/22/2023
Last Issue: 12/22/2023
# of Insertions: 1
Net Charge: $23.80
Payments/Credits: $0.00
Amount Due: $23.80
Affidavit Reference: TXT-23-04

Ad Proof

* Changes to this order may result in pricing
changes *

Proof Of Purchase Insertion Order: 2566592 Page 1 of 1
J - 1 - 2



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

PH20240108-02

REZ 23-02: Public Hearing for a Map Amendment from Core Commercial (CC) to Planned Development 
- Mixed-Use (PD-M) for properties located at 6630, 6640, 6650, 6654 Delmar Boulevard.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development

Public Hearing no

NA

N/A

N/A

N/A

Attached is the notice from Missouri Lawyers Media, indicating that the notice was published 
in their December 22, 2023 publication. 

Economic Development, Community Quality of Life.

City Manager, Gregrory Rose January 8, 2024

J - 2 - 1



1400 S. Highway Drive,
Fenton,MO, 63026,USA
314-421-1880, https://molawyersmedia.com/news/st-louis/

PROOF OF PURCHASE
COPY FOR YOUR RECORDS ONLY, THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE OR
AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

University City, City Of,Account ID 64741
6801 Delmar Blvd,
St. Louis,MO,631303104

ADVERTISER

Please Read Carefully
is not responsible for errors or

omissions after the First Run Date. If any errors exist in your ad,
please contact us at .
Attorney's placing legal advertisements are responsible for
payment of same.

The Countian (St Louis)

314-421-1880

Purchase Order #:
Insertion Order #: 2566594
Placement: The Countian (St Louis)
Index: Government
Category: Hearings and Minutes
First Issue: 12/22/2023
Last Issue: 12/22/2023
# of Insertions: 1
Net Charge: $32.13
Payments/Credits: $0.00
Amount Due: $32.13
Affidavit Reference: REZ-23-02

Ad Proof

* Changes to this order may result in pricing
changes *

Proof Of Purchase Insertion Order: 2566594 Page 1 of 1
J - 2 - 2



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

PH20240108-03

Liquor License - First Watch Restaurants, Inc., dba First Watch #1003 - 8658 Olive Blvd. 
63132

Keith Cole - Director of Finance Finance / All
Public Hearing Yes

N/A

None

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

First Watch Restaurants, Inc. (#1003) has applied for All Kinds of Intoxicating Liquor, By the 
Drink, Retail liquor license, including Sunday Liquor License.

The Applicant / Managing Officer is David Ernst.  A background check / investigation by the Police 
Department revealed no disqualifying information. Department Approval has been granted from all necessary 
departments. Recommendations from University City citizens were obtained.  The applicant is relying on 
five-sevenths vote by the Council to approve license.  A current Certificate of No Sales Tax Due issued by the 
Missouri Department of Revenue was received relative to the business. 2022 personal property tax record for 
the applicant indicates payment of taxes. Current voter registration documentation for the applicant was 
provided. 

N/A

N/A

City Manager, Gregory Rose January 8, 2024

J - 3 - 1





CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20240108-01

Liquor License - First Watch Restaurants, Inc., dba First Watch #1003 - 8658 Olive Blvd. 
63132

Keith Cole - Director of Finance Finance / All
Consent Item Yes

City Manager recommends the approval of the Liquor License

Liquor License Fee - $750

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

First Watch Restaurants, Inc. (#1003) has applied for All Kinds of Intoxicating Liquor, By the 
Drink, Retail liquor license, including Sunday Liquor License.

The Applicant / Managing Officer is David Ernst.  A background check / investigation by the Police 
Department revealed no disqualifying information. Department Approval has been granted from all necessary 
departments. Recommendations from University City citizens were obtained.  The applicant is relying on 
five-sevenths vote by the Council to approve license.  A current Certificate of No Sales Tax Due issued by the 
Missouri Department of Revenue was received relative to the business. 2022 personal property tax record for 
the applicant indicates payment of taxes. Current voter registration documentation for the applicant was 
provided. 

1. Application for Liquor License
2. Inter-Office Memorandum Report from the Police Department

Prudent Fiscal Management

City Manager, Gregory Rose January 8, 2024

K - 1 - 1



K - 1 - 2



K - 1 - 3



K - 1 - 4



K - 1 - 5



K - 1 - 6



K - 1 - 7



K - 1 - 8



K - 1 - 9



K - 1 - 10



K - 1 - 11



K - 1 - 12



K - 1 - 13



K - 1 - 14



K - 1 - 15



K - 1 - 16



TAXATION DIVISION
PO BOX 3666
JEFFERSON CITY, MO 65105-3666 Telephone: 573-751-9268

Fax: 573-522-1265
E-mail: taxclearance@dor.mo.gov

FIRST WATCH RESTAURANTS INC
8725 PENDERY PL STE 201
BRADENTON, FL  34201-2140

DATE: 12/07/2023
VALID THROUGH: 03/06/2024
UNIVERSITY CITY  

CERTIFICATE OF NO TAX DUE

MISSOURI ID: 19289499
Notice Number 2044192263

To Whom It May Concern: The Department of Revenue, State of Missouri, certifies the above
listed taxpayer has filed all required returns and paid all sales or withholding tax due, including
penalties and interest, and does not owe any sales and withholding tax, as of December 6,
2023.  This review does not include returns that are not required to be filed as of this date or
that have been filed but not yet processed by the Department.

This statement only applies to sales and withholding tax due and is not to be construed as
limiting the authority of the Director of Revenue to assess, or pursue collection of liabilities
resulting from final litigation, default in payment of any installment agreement entered into with
the Director of Revenue, any successor liability that may become due in the future, or audits or
reviews of the taxpayer's records as provided by law.

THIS CERTIFICATE REMAINS VALID FOR 90 DAYS FROM THE ISSUANCE DATE.

TAXATION DIVISION

K - 1 - 17



K - 1 - 18



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20240108-02

Westgate-STP-5402(616), Construction Agreement 

Darin Girdler, Director of Public Works Public Works/Ward 3
Consent Yes

City Manager recommends approval of the agreement with Ranieri 
Construction and authorization to execute to contract contained in Council's 
packet

$1,076,588.96 (City Share: $329,318.44  Federal Share: $747,270.52)  

$1,076,588.96 12-40-90_8080

Westgate is a federally funded STP project. The City advertised for bids for this project and received four (4)
responsive bids and all bidders were pre-qualified with MoDOT. The lowest bid of $848,848.51 was received from 
Sweetens Concrete Services, LLC but was rejected by MoDOT, due to not fulfilling (DBE) goal for this project. The 
second lowest bid of $1,076,588.96 was received from Raineri Construction and was approved by MoDOT.

The City applied for the funding of this project a few years ago and was granted a Surface 
Transportation Program Grant to make improvements to  Westgate from Delmar  Blvd. to 
Olive Blvd. The proposed improvements include new ADA compliant sidewalks and curb 
ramps, new roadway resurfacing, new paved approaches, improved pavement marking, 
shared use bicycle markings, improved signage, and other appurtenances. 

1. Contract
2.Construction Bid Concurrence

Preserve and improve public street-sidewalk Infrastructure

City Manager, Gregrory Rose January 8, 2024

K - 2 - 1



K - 2 - 2



K - 2 - 3



K - 2 - 4



K - 2 - 5



K - 2 - 6



K - 2 - 7



K - 2 - 8



K - 2 - 9



K - 2 - 10



K - 2 - 11



K - 2 - 12



K - 2 - 13



K - 2 - 14



K - 2 - 15



K - 2 - 16



K - 2 - 17



K - 2 - 18



K - 2 - 19



K - 2 - 20



K - 2 - 21



K - 2 - 22



K - 2 - 23



K - 2 - 24



K - 2 - 25



K - 2 - 26



K - 2 - 27



K - 2 - 28



K - 2 - 29



K - 2 - 30



K - 2 - 31



K - 2 - 32



K - 2 - 33



K - 2 - 34



K - 2 - 35



K - 2 - 36



K - 2 - 37



K - 2 - 38



K - 2 - 39



K - 2 - 40



K - 2 - 41



K - 2 - 42



K - 2 - 43



K - 2 - 44



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20240108-03

Annual Tree Trimming Project - PR24-04

Darin Girdler, Director of Public Works Forestry/All
Consent Yes

City Manager recommends approval to sign the contract with Gamma Tree Experts as the 
lowest responsible bidder.

The lowest bid out of four (4) is $139,835.00 from Gamma Tree Experts.  The budgeted 
capital item for this project is $200,000.

$139,8356.00

The City sought bids for this project and received four (4) responses (bid tabulation 
attached).

This is part of our annual and ongoing tree trimming throughout the City whereby the 
contractors focus on various areas of the community on a rotating basis.  This contract will 
focus on the area between North & South to Pennsylvania and Balson north to the City 
Limits.

PR24-04

Recommendation. 
Bid Tabulation

Community Quality of Life Amenities

City Manager, Gregrory Rose January 8, 2024

K - 3 - 1



www.ucitymo.org 
 

   Department of Public Works and Parks 
  6801 Delmar Boulevard, 3rd Floor, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8619, Fax: (314) 862-0694 

 

 
  

 
 
To: Darin Girdler Director of Public Works; Todd Strubhart-Deputy Director of Parks 
and Forestry 
 
From: Jacob Kaiser- Forestry Supervisor 
 

Recommendation for Annual Tree Trimming Project 

PR24-04 

 
The city received four (4) bids for the Annual Tree Trimming Project. Gamma Tree 

Expert Company was the lowest bid at $139,835.00. This price comes in at $60,065 under 

budget for the project.    

I am recommending that the city award the project to the Gamma Tree Expert 

Company as they were the lowest responsible bidder for the project. Bid Tabulations are 

attached to this Recommendation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

K - 3 - 2



K - 3 - 3



K - 3 - 4



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CM20240108-01

SDG Housing Partners - Parkview Place Apartments 

Brooke A. Smith General Administration 
City Manager's Report Yes 

City Manager asks the Council to receive a presentation from SDG Housing Partners on 
their plans for the Parkview Place Apartments. 

None

SDG Housing Partners requested a letter of support for a proposed project at Parkview 
Place Apartments.  

SDG Housing Partners contacted the City requesting a letter of support for tax credits for a 
proposed project at Parkview Place Apartments.  Prior to agreeing to provide a letter of 
support, City Manager Rose thought it important that SDG Housing present their plans for 
the Parkview Place Apartments to the Council.  Representatives will be present at Monday 
night's meeting to introduce themselves and discuss their plans for the apartment complex. 

Presentation 

Encourage High Quality Growth 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose January 8, 2024

L - 1 - 1



Proposed Project: 
PARKVIEW PLACE APARTMENTS
701 Westgate Avenue

Prepared For: 
UNIVERSITY CITY CITY COUNCIL

Presented By: 
SDG HOUSING PARTNERS

JANUARY 2024

L - 1 - 2



2

EXPERIENCE

• SDG Housing Partners was founded to preserve 
and renovate affordable housing communities 
throughout the nation. The SDG team is driven 
by a passion to redesign communities to the 
highest standards with both residents and the 
surrounding community’s needs in mind. 

• The principals of SDG Housing Partners have 
completed over 30 acquisitions and 
rehabilitations of affordable housing properties 
across five different states. Cathedral Square 
Towers, a 156-unit affordable senior community 
located in Downtown Kansas City, is the 
company’s most recent completed project. 

L - 1 - 3



3

EXPERIENCE

• The SDG team possesses the expertise and 
understanding of complex affordable housing 
regulations necessary to acquire, finance, 
redevelop, and operate affordable housing 
communities. Additionally, SDG has relationships 
with best-in-class industry partners to ensure 
properties are receive high quality renovations 
and operate above industry standards.

L - 1 - 4



4

EXPERIENCE

Recent Properties

Ramblewood Apartments
Clarksville, TN
112 Unit, Section 8, Family Apartments

Margaret Robertson Apartments
Nashville, TN
100 Unit, Section 8, Senior Apartments

Cathedral Square Towers
Kansas City, Missouri
156 Unit, Section 8, Senior Apartments

Columbus Park Plaza
Kansas City, Missouri
56 Unit, Section 8, Senior Apartments

L - 1 - 5



5

EXECUTIVE TEAM

RICK SIEBERT, MANAGING DIRECTOR

Mr. Siebert is an expert in structuring, acquiring, and renovating HUD Section 8 apartment properties 
utilizing FHA/HUD debt combined with Tax Exempt Bond financing and Federal Low Income Housing Tax 
Credits. With a background in architecture, Mr. Siebert ensures that his projects are renovated with the 
highest attention to detail which consistently results in housing of superior quality.

Before founding SDG Housing Partners, Mr. Siebert was the Chief Financial Officer and Principal at Thomas 
Safran and Associates (TSA) where he was ultimately responsible for all Acquisition and Renovation projects 
within TSA. While at TSA Mr. Siebert oversaw over 400 million dollars of real estate transactions and 
development or renovation of over 2,000 residential units.

Prior to TSA, Mr. Siebert was a Development Manager at Playa Capital Company LLC, the master 
developer of Playa Vista, a 1,087-acre urban infill project with 5,842 residential units and 4 million sq. feet 
of commercial and motion picture studio space. During his tenure at at Playa Capital Company Mr. Siebert 
was a member of the entitlement team of Phase 2 “the Village” of Playa Vista; composed of a 111-acre 
subdivision with 2,600 dwelling units and 200,000 s.f. of retail space.

L - 1 - 6



6

EXECUTIVE TEAM

LON BOOHER, DEVELOPMENT PARTNER

Mr. Booher is a Partner at SDG Housing Partners, Mr. Booher is the primary point of contact for our design 
and construction teams. With an extensive background in architecture, construction management, and real 
estate development, Mr. Booher has a primary focus on multi-family and Historic Tax Credit re-
development.

Prior to joining SDG, Mr. Booher was managing member of a pioneer design/build firm located in Kansas 
City, Missouri. He successfully executed over 30 million dollars of design/build contracts consisting of 
residential, hospitality, and office space.  70 percent of these projects utilized federal and state historic tax 
credits with his team facilitating the development group’s design approval by the National Park Service 
along with IRS construction cost certification requirements.

During this tenure, Mr. Booher has personally participated in the re-development of a 35,000 sq.ft. historic 
pre-prohibition brewery, several successful commercial projects in the historic “Westside’ neighborhood of 
Kansas City, and the oldest standing hotel in downtown Kansas City.  The latter receiving both the Kansas 
City Economic Development Corporation Cornerstone Award and the Preserve Missouri award from the 
Missouri Preservation Society in Jefferson City.

L - 1 - 7



7

Project Highlights

• 156 Senior Apartments (55+)
• 117 One-Bedrooms
• 39 Studios

• 100% HAP/LIHTC
• Built in 1972; Renovated 2004

• 14 Story Building
• Elevators Available
• Historic Registration in Process

• Financing
• Federal 4% Low Income Housing 

Tax Credits
• Federal Historic Tax Credits

• Estimated Construction $10,000,000
• Approximately $64,000 per unit

• Timeline
• Construction Start Q4 2024
• Completion Q4 2025

L - 1 - 8



PROPOSED RENOVATIONS

Building Upgrades
• Clean and refurbish exterior concrete

• Removal of red stripe at first/second floor

• Installation of new LED light fixtures throughout 
property

• Upgraded security system

• New elevator cabs and elevator life/safety upgrades

• New insulated windows at units to match historic 
profile

• New insulated storefront system at 1st floor to match 
historic profile

• Refurbish Porte Cochere 

• New roof installation

• Electrical system upgrades as necessary 

8

*Final Scope of Work dependent upon historic preservation requirements

L - 1 - 9



PROPOSED RENOVATIONS

Site Work
• New site gates with pedestrian access 

utilizing key fobs

• New motorized driveway gate

• Install lush landscaping around property 

• Resident gardens

• New outdoor gathering areas with fire-pit, 
barbeque, and activity area

• Update sidewalks and parking to full ADA 
compliance

9

*Final Scope of Work dependent upon historic preservation requirements

L - 1 - 10



PROPOSED RENOVATIONS

Common Areas
• New ADA compliant mailboxes

• Game room with billiards, shuffleboard, 
etc. 

• Upgraded TV lounge area

• New fitness areas including yoga and 
Pilates room

• Library with new computer workstations

• Remodeled common kitchen with 
energy efficient appliances

• Amenity areas to be secured with key 
fob access

• Dog wash station 

10

*Final Scope of Work dependent upon historic preservation requirements

L - 1 - 11



PROPOSED RENOVATIONS

Unit Interiors
• New energy efficient appliances including range and refrigerator 

• New window coverings

• New door hardware

• Paint and Flooring replacements

• New lighting with LED light fixtures

• New plumbing fixtures including low flow shower heads, toilets, and shut off 
valves

• New countertops and cabinets in kitchens and bathrooms

• New cultured marble countertops

• New HVAC controls in all units

• Upgrade 5% of units to full ADA accessibility

• Upgrade 2% of units to full Audio/Visual accessibility

• New In-Unit WIFI (free to residents)

11

*Final Scope of Work dependent upon historic preservation requirements

L - 1 - 12



12

BEFORE AND AFTER EXAMPLE

Cathedral Square Towers
Kansas City, Missouri
156 Senior Apartments

L - 1 - 13



13

BEFORE AND AFTER EXAMPLE

Cathedral Square Towers
Kansas City, Missouri
156 Senior Apartments

L - 1 - 14



14

BEFORE AND AFTER EXAMPLE

Cathedral Square Towers
Kansas City, Missouri
156 Senior Apartments

L - 1 - 15



15

BEFORE AND AFTER EXAMPLE

Cathedral Square Towers
Kansas City, Missouri
156 Senior Apartments

L - 1 - 16



16

BEFORE AND AFTER EXAMPLE

Columbus Park Plaza
Kansas City, Missouri
56 Senior Apartments

L - 1 - 17



17

BEFORE AND AFTER EXAMPLE

Columbus Park Plaza
Kansas City, Missouri
56 Senior Apartments

L - 1 - 18



18

BEFORE AND AFTER EXAMPLE

La Villa Puente
La Puente, California
121 Family Apartments

L - 1 - 19



19

BEFORE AND AFTER EXAMPLE

La Villa Puente
La Puente, California
121 Family Apartments

L - 1 - 20



• Preserve Affordability; current residents and current affordability will remain. New HAP contract 
and affordable housing land use restriction agreement to extend affordability for low-income 
seniors in University City. 

• Renovate Parkview Place to fully address short and long-term maintenance needs to the highest 
standard, with minimal disturbance to tenants.

• Safeguard the Historic Significance of this landmark property in St. Louis, ensuring its lasting 
contribution to the city’s unique character.

• Remain transparent with University City officials and all public stakeholders throughout the 
renovation process, as a true partner and proud long-term owner and steward of this historic 
building.

• Maintain and operate Parkview Place Apartments to create a legacy of high-quality, affordable 
senior housing.

• Ensure on-site Management remains committed to delivering essential social services to the 
senior residents of these communities, ensuring they can age in dignity and comfort.

20

OUR COMMITMENTS

L - 1 - 21



Thank You

L - 1 - 22



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CM20240108-02

Comprehensive Plan with Amendments

John L. Wagner Planning and Development

City Manager Report yes

City Manager recommends approval of the amended Comprehensive Plan with one modification; the word 
"considering" be amended to "exploring" relative to an income discrimination ordinance.  And provide direction on 
intergrating an annual review of projects listed in the Comprehensive Plan with the creation of the annual work plan 

N/A

N/A

The Plan Commission approved the changes as presented, with one exception. In Item #1, the Commission added back into 
the Plan the provision regarding a source of income discrimination ordinance for Goal E.2.5 that was previously removed, 
although it changed one word, replacing "Adopting" with "Considering," as follows:  

iii. Considering a source of income discrimination ordinance.

This amendment is noted on Page 1 of the marked-up version of the Staff Report. 

Attached are the Plan Commission Transmittal Letter and the Staff Report from the December 6, 
2023 Plan Commission meeting - amended to include for the City Council the Plan Commission's 
recommendation. A marked-up version and a "clean" version of the amendments are included for 
the Council's information. 

Economic Development, Encourage High-quality Growth, Improved Infrastructure, 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose January 8, 2024

L - 2 - 1



December 27, 2023 

Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 

RE: Comprehensive Plan - Amendments 

Dear Ms. Reese, 

At a special meeting on December 27, 2023, at 3:00 p.m. held virtually via Zoom, the 
Plan Commission considered amendments to the Comprehensive Plan as suggested by 
the City Council and the City Manager. 

By a vote of 6 to 0, the Plan Commission recommended approval of the Comprehensive 
Plan amendments as presented, with one exception. On page 1 of the Staff Report, 
original language was added to Goal E.2.5 dealing with an income discrimination 
ordinance, changing “Adopting” to “Considering,” as follows: 

iii. Considering a source of income discrimination ordinance.

Sincerely, 

Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 

Plan Commission
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168  
 

L - 2 - 2



Comprehensive Plan Revisions 
December 22, 2023 

During the November 13 and December 11, 2023 study sessions, the City Council, Mayor, and City Manager 
provided feedback on the comprehensive plan. The City Council, Mayor, and City Manager requested 
several revisions to the plan. Staff has worked with the Plan Commission to address those requests and 
propose revised text. In the document below, each revision includes a descrip�on, proposed language, and 
background/jus�fica�on for the revision. 

Item #1 – Related to Source of Income Discrimina�on Ordinance 
Original langue in black text, proposed revisions in red text below: 

E.2.5 Protect non-homeowner ci�zens (renters) through such measures as:
i. Improving the rental inspec�on program to ensure safe, habitable, and fair housing.
ii. Crea�ng a renter protec�on program.
iii. Adop�ng Exploring a source of income discrimina�on ordinance.

Item #2 – Related to the forthcoming Storm Water Master Plan 
Original language in black text, proposed revisions in red text below: 

E.3.1 Implement a Storm Water Master Plan or take such measures as directed by the City Council,
which may include recommenda�ons by the Commission on Stormwater Issues, and engage the
Plan Commission in updates to the City's Code.
The Commission on Storm Water Issues is in the process of crea�ng a Storm Water Master Plan,
which may recommend and priori�ze certain stormwater mi�ga�on projects for the City, as well as
changes to standards in codes related to site coverage, impervious surface specifica�ons, etc. These
code changes may require that future development in the city occur in a resilient manner that
avoids worsening the city’s flooding challenges. Grants and other funding/bonding will be needed
for more buyouts. It will be cri�cal for the Commission on Storm Water Issues to design a Master
Plan that is consistent with and supports the other goals and vision of this plan.

Background/Jus�fica�on: 
Minor Edits: The second sentence in the paragraph is proposed to be removed is duplicative of the action 
text.  Bonding was spelled incorrectly.  

The commission on stormwater issues has not completed the Storm Water Master plan.  The action item 
states that the city should implement the recommendations.  However, it is possible that the 
recommendations are in some way: not aligned with the community vision outlined in the Comp plan, not 
allowed under existing current city or county law, or not fiscally appropriate given city resources.  

The proposed revision provides additional direction to the Commission on Stormwater issues to design a 
Master Plan that is consistent with and supports the goals of Comprehensive Plan. City council should feel 
comfortable adopting the plan if it meets the goals in the Comprehensive Plan. Council should expect that 
the Master Plan will explicitly highlight the Master Plan’s alignment with Comprehensive plan. 

Item #3 – Related to the forthcoming Flood Mi�ga�on Plan 
Original language in black text, proposed revisions in red text below: 

L - 2 - 3



E.3.2 Implement a flood mi�ga�on plan for the River Des Peres and its tributaries or take such 
measures as directed by the City Council, which may include recommenda�ons by the Commission 
on Stormwater Issues.  
Mi�ga�on of flooding in University City will require a complex combina�on of engineering and 
policy measures. The flood mi�ga�on plan that is currently underway is taking a holis�c look at how 
flooding can be mi�gated and may include specific recommenda�ons for ac�on to be taken. 
Implementa�on of the plan will require coopera�on between the City and State and Federal 
agencies.  

 
Item #4 – Related to the forthcoming Housing & Third Ward Revitaliza�on Task Force 
Plan. 
Original language in black text, proposed revisions in red text below: 

E.1.2 Implement a Housing and Third Ward Revitaliza�on plan or take such measures as directed by 
the City Council, which may include recommenda�ons by the Housing and Third Ward Revitaliza�on 
Task Force. The redevelopment agreement for the Market at Olive includes a TIF District that 
dedicates $10 million to the Third Ward neighborhoods, and $5 million to the Olive corridor. The 
funds are allocated to housing stock improvements, vacant property acquisi�ons, homeownership 
efforts, streetscaping and revitaliza�on efforts on Olive, and other ini�a�ves developed in 
accordance with the work of the Housing and Third Ward Revitaliza�on Task Force. The Task Force’s 
work commenced during the �me frame in which this comprehensive plan was being conducted 
and will be completed a�er the comprehensive plan is adopted. The Task Force should priori�ze 
recommenda�ons that are consistent with and support the other goals and vision of this plan. 

 
Background/Jus�fica�on: 
The Housing and Third Ward Revitalization Task Force has not completed the Housing and Third Ward plan.  
The action item states that the city should implement the recommendations.  However, it is possible that the 
recommendations are in some way: not aligned with the community vision outlined in the Comp plan, not 
allowed under existing current city or county law, or not fiscally appropriate given city resources.  

The proposed revision provides additional direction to the Housing and Third Ward Revitalization Task Force 
issues to design a Plan that is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and for the City council to adopt the 
plan if it meets the relevant goals related to 3rd ward outlined in the Comprehensive Plan.  Council should 
expect that the Task force plan will explicitly highlight the alignment with Comprehensive plan. 

Background/Jus�fica�on: 
As written the Comprehensive Plan to does explicitly assign a responsible party for proposing metrics for 
each action item, a date as to when these metrics should be defined, and the frequency in the metrics should 
be updated and provided to City Council.  Metrics are essential for accountability, efficacy of the policy, and 
ultimately tracking progress of achieving the goals of the community. 
 
 

Item #5 – Related to the Future Character and Land Use Map 
Proposed revision to the map described below: 
The proper�es at the northwest and southeast corners of Olive and Midland (outlined in red in the below 
map) should be changed from “Parks, Recrea�on, and Open Space” to “Community Corridor”. 
 

L - 2 - 4



Item #6 – Related to traffic crash data on Olive Boulevard 
Original language in black text, proposed revisions in red text below: 

In University City, 31% of traffic crashes on Olive result in an injury, compared to 19% in the rest of 
University City. 

Background/Jus�fica�on: 
During the December 11, 2023 Council Study Session, Mayor Crow asked for clarification on the above 
figures related to traffic crashes. Staff reevaluated the data and found that these figures were inaccurately 
described. Of the 987 traffic crashes on Olive Boulevard between 2013 and 2023, 466 people were injured 
(47%). However, multiple people can be injured in one accident. Staff found that of those 987 crashes, 310 
resulted in personal injuries (31%). Of all other 4,512 crashes in University City that occurred during that 
time frame, 878 resulted in personal injury (19%).  

L - 2 - 5



Comprehensive Plan Revisions 
December 22, 2023 

During the November 13 and December 11, 2023 study sessions, the City Council, Mayor, and City Manager 
provided feedback on the comprehensive plan. The City Council, Mayor, and City Manager requested 
several revisions to the plan. Staff has worked with the Plan Commission to address those requests and 
propose revised text. In the document below, each revision includes a descrip�on, proposed language, and 
background/jus�fica�on for the revision. 

Item #1 – Related to Source of Income Discrimina�on Ordinance 
Original langue in black text, proposed revisions in red text below: 

E.2.5 Protect non-homeowner ci�zens (renters) through such measures as:
i. Improving the rental inspec�on program to ensure safe, habitable, and fair housing.
ii. Crea�ng a renter protec�on program.
iii. Adop�ng a source of income discrimina�on ordinance.21

E.3.1 Implement a Storm Water Master Plan or take such measures as directed by the City Council,
which may include recommenda�ons by the Commission on Stormwater Issues, and engage the
Plan Commission in updates to the City's Code.Implement the Commission on Storm Water Issues’
Master Plan recommenda�ons and engage the Plan Commission in updates to the City’s code.
Implement the Commission on Storm Water Issues’ Master Plan recommenda�ons and engage the
Plan Commission in updates to the City’s code. The Commission on Storm Water Issues is in the
process of crea�ng a Storm Water Master Plan, which will may recommend and priori�ze certain
stormwater mi�ga�on projects for the City, as well as changes to standards in codes related to site
coverage, impervious surface specifica�ons, etc. These code changes will may require that future
development in the city occur in a resilient manner that avoids worsening the city’s flooding
challenges. Grants and other funding/binding bonding will be needed for more buyouts. It will be
cri�cal for the Commission on Storm Water Issues to design a Master Plan that is consistent with
and supports the other goals and vision of this plan. to be consulted in any updates to the City
codes. 

Background/Jus�fica�on: 
Minor Edits: The second sentence in the paragraph is proposed to be removed is duplicative of the action 
text.  Bonding was spelled incorrectly.  

The commission on stormwater issues has not completed the Storm Water Master plan.  The action item 
states that the city should implement the recommendations.  However, it is possible that the 
recommendations are in some way: not aligned with the community vision outlined in the Comp plan, not 
allowed under existing current city or county law, or not fiscally appropriate given city resources.  

The proposed revision provides additional direction to the Commission on Stormwater issues to design a 
Master Plan that is consistent with and supports the goals of Comprehensive Plan. City council should feel 
comfortable adopting the plan if it meets the goals in the Comprehensive Plan. Council should expect that 
the Master Plan will explicitly highlight the Master Plan’s alignment with Comprehensive plan. 

Item #2 – Related to the forthcoming Storm Water Master Plan 
Original language in black text, proposed revisions in red text below: 

L - 2 - 6

jwagner
Cross-Out



Item #3 – Related to the forthcoming Flood Mi�ga�on Plan 
Original language in black text, proposed revisions in red text below: 

E.3.2 Implement a flood mi�ga�on plan for the River Des Peres and its tributaries or take such
measures as directed by the City Council, which may include recommenda�ons by the Commission
on Stormwater Issues. Implement the flood mi�ga�on plan for the River Des Peres and its
tributaries, as recommended by the Commission on Storm Water Issues.
Mi�ga�on of flooding in University City will require a complex combina�on of engineering and
policy measures. The flood mi�ga�on plan that is currently underway is taking a holis�c look at how
flooding can be mi�gated and will may include specific recommenda�ons for ac�on to be taken.
Implementa�on of the plan will require coopera�on between the City and State and Federal
agencies.

Item #4 – Related to the forthcoming Housing & Third Ward Revitaliza�on Task Force 
Plan. 
Original language in black text, proposed revisions in red text below: 

E.1.2 Implement a Housing and Third Ward Revitaliza�on plan or take such measures as directed by
the City Council, which may include recommenda�ons by the Housing and Third Ward Revitaliza�on
Task Force. Implement the recommenda�ons of the Housing and Third Ward Revitaliza�on Task
Force. 
The redevelopment agreement for the Market at Olive includes a TIF District that dedicates $10 
million to the Third Ward neighborhoods, and $5 million to the Olive corridor. The funds are 
allocated to housing stock improvements, vacant property acquisi�ons, homeownership efforts, 
streetscaping and revitaliza�on efforts on Olive, and other ini�a�ves developed in accordance with 
the work of the Housing and Third Ward Revitaliza�on Task Force. The Task Force’s work 
commenced during the �me frame in which this comprehensive plan was being conducted and will 
be completed a�er the comprehensive plan is adopted. The Task Force should priori�ze 
recommenda�ons that are consistent with and support the other goals and vision of this plan. 

Background/Jus�fica�on: 
The Housing and Third Ward Revitalization Task Force has not completed the Housing and Third Ward plan.  
The action item states that the city should implement the recommendations.  However, it is possible that the 
recommendations are in some way: not aligned with the community vision outlined in the Comp plan, not 
allowed under existing current city or county law, or not fiscally appropriate given city resources.  

The proposed revision provides additional direction to the Housing and Third Ward Revitalization Task Force 
issues to design a Plan that is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and for the City council to adopt the 
plan if it meets the relevant goals related to 3rd ward outlined in the Comprehensive Plan.  Council should 
expect that the Task force plan will explicitly highlight the alignment with Comprehensive plan. 

Background/Jus�fica�on: 
As written the Comprehensive Plan to does explicitly assign a responsible party for proposing metrics for 
each action item, a date as to when these metrics should be defined, and the frequency in the metrics should 
be updated and provided to City Council.  Metrics are essential for accountability, efficacy of the policy, and 
ultimately tracking progress of achieving the goals of the community. 

L - 2 - 7



Item #5 – Related to the Future Character and Land Use Map 
Proposed revision to the map described below: 
The proper�es at the northwest and southeast corners of Olive and Midland (outlined in red in the below 
map) should be changed from “Parks, Recrea�on, and Open Space” to “Community Corridor”. 

Item #6 – Related to traffic crash data on Olive Boulevard 
Original language in black text, proposed revisions in red text below: 

In University City, 3147% of traffic crashes on Olive result in an injury, compared to 1927% in the 
rest of University City. 

Background/Jus�fica�on: 
During the December 11, 2023 Council Study Session, Mayor Crow asked for clarification on the above 
figures related to traffic crashes. Staff reevaluated the data and found that these figures were inaccurately 
described. Of the 987 traffic crashes on Olive Boulevard between 2013 and 2023, 466 people were injured 
(47%). However, multiple people can be injured in one accident. Staff found that of those 987 crashes, 310 
resulted in personal injuries (31%). Of all other 4,512 crashes in University City that occurred during that 
time frame, 878 resulted in personal injury (19%).  

L - 2 - 8



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CM20240108-03

University Hills Neighborhood Improvement District (NID)

Gregory Rose, City Manager General Administration 
City Manager's Report Yes 

City Manager recommends extension of Resolution 2009-01 to December 31, 2025 and 
authorization to release all remaining balances consistent with the State Statue and City 
Ordinances governing the University Hills Neighborhood Improvement District.

The Subdivision Trustees have  requested that the City Council amend Resolution 2009-1 so as to 
extend the deadline to December 31, 2025, allow the Maintenance Fund balance to be used for 
any improvement work within the scope of the NID, listed above, and release the funds to them. 
(See November 20, 2023 letter attached.)    

see attached staff report

Staff Report 
Subdivision Trustees letter dated November 20, 2023 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose January 8, 2024

L - 3 - 1



Page 1 of 2 
 

   
AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

 

MEETING DATE:  January 8, 2024 

DEPARTMENT:  City Manager’s Office  

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: University Hills Neighborhood Improvement District (NID) 

 

 
ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The University Hills Neighborhood Improvement District (NID) was established by Resolution 
2006-7 (11/6/2006). The general nature of the proposed improvement was described in 
Resolutions 2006-7 and 2009-1 (2/23/2009) and was based on the description in the Petition 
for the Creation of a Neighborhood Improvement District filed by owners of record of more 
than two-thirds by area of all real property in the NID. 
 
The proposed improvement was approved by the City Council and included:   - 
 
- Repair and replacement of curbs, gutters and driveway aprons that were significantly 
damaged, non- functional or exhibit more than minor cracks, as determined by the 
Subdivision Trustees;                                                                                                                                               
- Patching, repair and replacement of interface between the street and concrete curbs, 
gutters and driveway aprons in connection with the repair and replacement of such curbs, 
gutters and driveway aprons and in other areas where crumbling street interface exists, as 
determined by the Subdivision Trustees;                                                                                                                                                         
- Select street patching, repair and resurfacing of depressions, fatigue failure, street crowning 
and rutting, as determined by the Subdivision Trustees;                                                                                                      
- Application of a new layer of chip seal to all streets, as determined by the Subdivision 
Trustees;                                                                                                                                                         
- Management and supervision of construction of the above improvements, and maintenance 
of the improvements during the construction period, is to be performed by the Subdivision 
Trustees;                                                                                                                                                                
- Application of a future second layer of chip seal to all streets to be performed by the 
Subdivision Trustees, which application shall occur after payment in full of all assessments 
against real property within the neighborhood improvement district but within a maximum time 
frame of 15 years; and 
- Establishment of a maintenance fund for the benefit of the Subdivision Trustees to provide 
for the application of a second layer of chip seal to all streets, which application shall occur 
after payment in full of all assessments against real property within the neighborhood 
improvement district but within a maximum time frame of 15 years. 
 

L - 3 - 2



Page 2 of 2 
 

The NID improvement was performed and all assessments against the real property have 
been paid. There is a balance of $23,914.83 in the University Hills Neighborhood 
Improvement District (NID) Maintenance Fund.  
The Finance Department has custody of the funds. The Subdivision Trustees have informed 
the City that the balance is insufficient to apply a second layer of chip seal and therefore they 
will not be able to perform the work by the February 23, 2024 deadline in Resolution 2009-1 
(2/23/2009). The Subdivision Trustees have  requested that the City Council amend 
Resolution 2009-1 so as to extend the deadline to December 31, 2025, allow the 
Maintenance Fund balance to be used for any improvement work within the scope of the NID, 
listed above, and release the funds to them. (See November 20, 2023 letter attached.)   
 
Section 67.473 RSMo, applicable to neighborhood improvement districts, provides in part: 
"Upon completion of an improvement, the balance remaining in the fund or account 
established for such improvement, if any, shall be credited against the amount of the original 
assessment, and with respect to property owners that have prepaid their assessments in 
accordance with section 67.473. the amount of each such  credit shall be refunded to the 
appropriate property owner..." 
 
Therefore, to the extent funds in the Maintenance Fund are not used, they must be refunded 
to the property owners of the approximately 265 lots in the NID. There is nothing in the 
Missouri Neighborhood Improvement District Act that specifically addresses whether the 
funds in the Maintenance Fund may be used for another purpose or whether the deadline 
may be extended.  
 
The signed NID Petition provided that application of a future second layer of chip seal from 
funds in the Maintenance Fund "shall occur" within 15 years, notice to the public of that 
improvement was given and a public hearing was held on February 26, 2007. Thereafter, 
construction of the improvement was completed in accordance with the approved plans and 
specifications, and the final cost was computed and assessed against the property owners, 
including a Maintenance Fund in the amount of $23,914.83. Resolution 2009-1 (2/23/2009). 

L - 3 - 3



L - 3 - 4



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

UB20240108-01

TXT 23-04 – Application for a Zoning Text Amendment to amend sections 400.760, 400.780, 
400.1190, and 400.2130 in the zoning code.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development

Unfin Bus - Bill 9532 yes

I recommend approval of the four text amendments, as reflected in the attached letter from the 
developer if they intend to meet our parking standards (see attached).  The letter from Subtext 
was received after the Planning Commission considered the proposed text amendments.

N/A

N/A

At the Plan Commission meeting on December 6, 2023, the Plan Commission voted 
unanimously to approve the first three (3) of the four text amendments in TXT 23-04. The 
fourth amendment, relative to Section 400.2130G, was not recommended for approval by the 
Plan Commission, affirming the October 25, 2023, recommendation on Section 400.2130G. 

Attached are the Letter from Subtext, the Plan Commission Transmittal Letter, Staff Report from the 
December 6, 2023 Plan Commission meeting - amended to include for the City Council the Plan 
Commission's recommendation, and a Draft Ordinance. 

Economic Development, Encourage High-quality Growth, Improved Infrastructure, 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose January 8, 2024

M - 1 - 1



M - 1 - 2



December 6, 2023 

Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 

RE: Zoning Text Amendment – TXT 23-04 

Dear Ms. Reese, 

At a regularly scheduled meeting on December 6, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. in the 5th Floor 
Council Chambers at City Hall (6801 Delmar Boulevard) the Plan Commission 
considered the application of Subtext Acquisitions, LLC for a Zoning Text Amendment 
to amend sections 400.760, 400.780, 400.1190, and 400.2130 in the zoning code. 

The Plan Commission voted unanimously to approve the first three (3) of the four text 
amendments in TXT 23-04. The fourth amendment, relative to Section 400.2130G, was 
not recommended for approval by the Plan Commission, affirming the October 25, 2023 
recommendation on Section 400.2130G. 

Sincerely, 

Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 

Plan Commission
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168  
 

M - 1 - 3



MEMO (UPDATED FOR DECEMBER 6, 2023) 
*Updates to this staff report are indicated in bold, blue text* 

City Council 
 

Meeting Date December 20, 2023 (Presented October 25, 2023 and December 6, 2023) 

File Number TXT-23-04 

Council District n/a 

Applicant Subtext Acquisitions, LLC 

Request Approval of Text Amendment to sections 400.760, 400.780, 400.1190, 
and 400.2130 in the zoning code 

 

 
Comprehensive Plan Conformance:  
[ X ] Yes  [  ] No      [  ] No reference 
 
Staff Recommendation:    
[  ] Approval [ X ] Approval with Conditions   [  ] Denial 
 
Attachments: 

A. Proposed Text Amendment (only Section 400.2130 is attached to this revised memo, since the 
other Sections in the amendment are not affected) 

 
 
Request 
The applicant, Subtext Acquisitions, LLC, is requesting approval of a text amendment to various sections 
of the zoning code. A recommendation and action are needed in advance of Plan Commission and City 
Council recommendation of REZ-23-02, an application for Planned Development – Mixed-Use. Below is a 
summary of each provision proposed to be amended and the purpose: 
 

• 400.760(D) – This subsection describes the permitted uses for Planned Development – Mixed-Use 
(PD-M). Currently, there is no provision for allowing elevator-type dwellings with a floor area ratio 
(FAR) of greater than three (3.0). The applicant is concurrently proposing a mixed-use 
development (PD-M) with elevator-type dwellings and an overall FAR of 3.69. The proposed text 
amendment would allow elevator-type dwellings with an FAR of greater than 3.0 to be designated 
as permitted uses only through the PD-M procedure. The Plan Commission and City Council will 
retain their authority to evaluate the appropriateness of the use and intensity and determine 
whether to approve or deny, or approve with conditions, the use and intensity. 

• 400.780(E) – This subsection describes the dimensional regulations for Planned Development – 
Mixed-Use (PD-M). The proposed amendment would allow the Plan Commission and City Council 
to waive perimeter buffer requirements (which can be up to 50 feet wide) for PD-M developments 
specifically in the Delmar Loop, when deemed appropriate. This proposed amendment recognizes 
that requiring such buffers can be burdensome for development in the Delmar Loop, where space 

M - 1 - 4



is limited, and that the buffers are not compatible with the character of the Delmar Loop. The 
proposed amendment also defines the Delmar Loop for the purposes of the subsection. 

• 400.1190(B) – This subsection requires an increase in setbacks (10’) and screening (privacy fence) 
when residential developments or multi-family developments abut commercial uses. The 
proposed amendment would allow the Plan Commission and City Council to waive the increased 
setback and screening for developments in the Delmar Loop when deemed appropriate. Similar 
to the above reasoning, this proposed amendment recognizes that requiring increased setbacks 
and screening in the Delmar Loop is not consistent with the character of existing development in 
the Delmar Loop. The proposed amendment also defines the Delmar Loop for purposes of the 
subsection.  

• 400.2130 – This section sets forth various exceptions to the minimum off-street parking 
requirements. The proposed amendment allows the Plan Commission and City Council to modify 
the parking requirements for developments going through the Planned Development procedure 
without also requiring a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). As currently written, most of the 
exceptions in 400.2130 can only be granted with a CUP, even if a proposed development is already 
going through the Planned Development process. The amendment would also allow the Plan 
Commission and City Council to approve greater modification of parking requirements based on 
evidence provided by the applicant, including industry data and analysis of parking demands for 
the specific uses. While Planned Developments requesting modification to the parking 
requirements would not be required to obtain a CUP for a parking reduction, they would still be 
required to meet the CUP review criteria. 
The proposed text amendment has been revised (see attached) to change this provision, which 
would allow greater modification from the parking requirements beyond what is currently 
allowed in the code. Instead, this provision will simply allow existing parking reductions in 
Section 400.2130 to be authorized under the Plan Development procedure. Currently, the code 
only allows some of these reductions through the Conditional Use Permit procedure.  

 
Process – Required City Approvals 
Plan Commission.  Section 400.3180 of the zoning code requires that the Plan Commission report to the 
City Council its recommendation on any application after receipt of the staff review report. The Zoning 
Administrator shall forward a copy of the Plan Commission's recommendation to the Historic Preservation 
Commission. 
 
City Council.  Section 400.3190 of the zoning code requires that text amendment applications be reviewed 
by City Council for final decision, subsequent to a recommendation from Plan Commission. The City 
Council shall hold a public hearing before acting on any application for amendment. 
 
Plan Commission Meeting 

At the Plan Commission meeting on December 6, 2023, the Plan Commission voted unanimously to 
approve the first three (3) of the four text amendments in TXT 23-04. The fourth amendment, relative 
to Section 400.2130G, was not recommended for approval by the Plan Commission, affirming the 
October 25, 2023, recommendation on Section 400.2130G. 
 
 
 

M - 1 - 5



Amend Section 400.760.D: 
  
D.    Planned Development — Mixed Use (PD-M). 

1. Permitted land uses and developments shall be established in the conditions of the ordinance 
adopted by the City Council governing the particular planned development — mixed use district. 
Specific uses shall include those uses designated as permitted, accessory, or conditional uses in 
any of the residential districts, and/or in the "LC", "GC" and "CC" commercial districts. 

2. In addition to those uses included in Subsection (D)(1) of this Section, the following uses may be 
designated as permitted uses and established as such in the ordinance governing the particular 
planned development — mixed use district: 

a.  Attached single-family dwellings; 
b.  Patio dwellings; 
c.  Zero lot line residential developments;                                                                                   
d. Dwellings, elevator-type, with a F.A.R. greater than three (3).  

  
3. It is anticipated that the above uses will be combined in order to qualify as "PD-M" district. 

  
 
Amend Section 400.780.E: 

E Planned Development — Mixed Use (PD-M). "PD-M" developments shall incorporate the 
regulations set forth in both Subsections dealing specifically with "PD-R" and "PD-C" 
developments, except that the minimum perimeter buffer area may be reduced or not 
required if the "PD-M" development is on Delmar Boulevard between Kingsland Avenue and 
the eastern municipal limits, the broadly described boundaries of the University City Loop 
special business district established in Section 120.900. If an unresolved conflict between those 
regulations occurs (such as between common open space versus site coverage), the applicant 
shall set forth the reasons for such discrepancy and the proposed resolution. Any discrepancies 
between the two (2) sets of regulations and the resolution thereof shall be set forth in the map 
amendment ordinance and/or the resolution approving the development. The resolution 
thereof shall be pursuant to staff recommendation or as set forth by the Plan Commission in the 
map amendment ordinance. 

  
 
Amend Section 400.1190.B:  
  

B. In situations where a residential subdivision (more than three (3) lots) or other multiple dwelling 
unit development is constructed on a site that is abutting or adjacent to commercial or an "IC" 
zoned lot, the developer of the residential subdivision or development shall provide the 
following increase in setbacks and screening: 

1. The minimum setback for the principal residential buildings shall be increased by ten 
(10) feet along the common property line separating the residential and commercial or 
"IC" Zoning District. A permanent buffer strip of a minimum of ten (10) feet shall be 
established adjacent to and parallel to said common property line(s). This strip shall be 

M - 1 - 6

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293314%2328293314&c=E,1,LMVUsXD7P4cLoMzCLklQe45wMKBQqZ0dfAV8x2QTaHszO2vtINUwggyEogRvOPMOtSae15oQVfjrnAmdM00P9G0FpdwBCpAfMsoSJc397dJD7-Lftl3htq1S&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293316%2328293316&c=E,1,jwuiMQaYcR8ExYmvJO3_m31Izl-8lo3aHI7fP4QJymjRq0MpmV25gYLTCwcSva-ZhEWqYXI4oLjXSeHKhUZBb7MXuJm3t4ZcgGLbhS5G&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293317%2328293317&c=E,1,dfEnKiwfjvJPDCYJsgHft_asaDJ4PE8SGAfopV-vZaUrjRikY4So_xhyZpjnPV2xJ0Op7FQ6ZIgKsH2yaAnW1KIEvYS3afdfZnaX6Cujtv2H&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293318%2328293318&c=E,1,00j_VXktxfGaU0MDP_B6trYwDjPKkyTF2msQjfH4ctk0rVeGM6kUbCuHI8C3uJSoEDJoIqY5SlgQ9NgiZLmYbEyRFYbgqCp6IDJmDyAasi1_RUW9LoLe&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1


indicated on the approved subdivision plat and/or development plan and annotated 
with the following statement: "This strip is reserved for landscape screening. The 
placement of buildings or other structures hereon is prohibited."  

2.      Within this buffer strip, there shall be a landscaped area planted with one (1) 
evergreen tree for every twenty (20) lineal feet of common property line. In addition, 
combinations of canopy trees, ornamental  trees and shrubs shall be provided as 
approved by the Zoning Administrator, provided that such landscaping will 
effectively  screen the non-residential uses from the view of the abutting residential 
zoned properties. 

3. In addition, there shall be placed at the property line a neat, clean and maintained sight-
proof fence or wall having a minimum height of six (6) feet, but not more than eight (8) 
feet. 

  
The setbacks and screening in this Subsection may be reduced or not required under the planned 
development procedure in Article IV, Division 11 of this Chapter provided the development is on 
Delmar Boulevard between Kingsland Avenue and the eastern municipal limits, the broadly described 
boundaries of the University City Loop special business district established in Section 120.900.  
  
  
Add Section 400.2130.G: 
  

G.     Planned Developments. Exceptions in this Section authorized under the conditional use 
procedure may be authorized for planned developments under the planned development 
procedure in Article IV, Division 11 of this Chapter, and the same exception standards shall apply 
under either procedure and may be adjusted the City Council to the same extent allowed under 
Section 400.2700.D.2 for conditional uses.  

 
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the text amendment as amended above. 

M - 1 - 7

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293787%2328293787&c=E,1,jnbpYUGtwNG2Btic6UKabzHzqbVVfUVlah7D2KiXq7WKL6E6XgqWSgB1l3OGTwgI-79h2NModUnsJ5WcgWTwl6sx_j-AfNDnL3KJVEy0Ew,,&typo=1


INTRODUCED BY:        DATE:   
 
BILL NO.: 9532         ORDINANCE NO.:  
 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ZONING CODE SECTIONS 400.760.D, 400.780.E, 400.1190.B 
AND 400.2130 OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING OR 
APPLICABLE TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENTS, BY ADDING PROVISIONS ON MINIMUM 
OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING SPACES IN ALL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICTS ("PD"), AND PROVISIONS ON FLOOR AREA RATIOS, MINIMUM 
PERIMETER BUFFER AREAS AND SETBACKS AND SCREENING IN PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT - MIXED USE DISTRICTS ("PD-M").  
  
        WHEREAS, Chapter 400 (Zoning Code) of the University City Municipal Code divides the City 
of University City, Missouri (City) into several zoning districts and establishes standards therein to 
which land, buildings, structures and their uses must conform; and 
  
        WHEREAS, in a meeting held on December 6, 2023, the City Plan Commission examined Zoning 
Code text amendments to Sections 400.760.D, 400.780.E, 400.1190.B and 400.2130 that added 
provisions on minimum off-street parking and loading spaces in all Planned Development Districts 
("PD"), and provisions on floor area ratios, minimum perimeter buffer areas and setbacks and screening 
in Planned Development - Mixed Use Districts ("PD -M"), and recommended to the City Council that 
the text amendments to Sections 400.760.D, 400.780.E, 400.1190.B be approved and the text amendment 
to Section 400.2130 not be approved; and  
  
        WHEREAS, due notice of a public hearing to be held by the City Council in the City Council 
Chambers at City Hall at 6:30 p.m. on January 8, 2024, was duly published on December 22, 2023 in 
the St. Louis Countian, a newspaper of general circulation within the City; and 
  
        WHEREAS, the public hearing was held at the time and place specified in said notice, and all 
suggestions or objections concerning the text amendments to the Zoning Code of the City were duly 
heard and considered by the City Council. 
  
        NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY 
CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
        Section 1.    Zoning Code Sections 400.760.D, 400.780.E and 400.1190.B of the University City 
Municipal Code, relating or applicable to planned developments, are hereby amended by adding 
provisions therein, so that said Sections, as so amended, shall read as follows: 
 
Section 400.760 Permitted Uses: 
  
D.    Planned Development — Mixed Use (PD-M). 

1. Permitted land uses and developments shall be established in the conditions of the ordinance 
adopted by the City Council governing the particular planned development — mixed use district. 
Specific uses shall include those uses designated as permitted, accessory, or conditional uses in 
any of the residential districts, and/or in the "LC", "GC" and "CC" commercial districts. 

  

M - 1 - 8



2. In addition to those uses included in Subsection (D)(1) of this Section, the following uses may 
be designated as permitted uses and established as such in the ordinance governing the particular 
planned development — mixed use district: 

a.  Attached single-family dwellings; 
b.  Patio dwellings; 
c.  Zero lot line residential developments;                                                                                   
d. Dwellings, elevator-type, with a F.A.R. greater than three (3).  

  
3. It is anticipated that the above uses will be combined in order to qualify as "PD-M" district. 

  
 
Section 400.780 Density and Dimensional Regulations and Performance Standards: 

E. Planned Development — Mixed Use (PD-M). "PD-M" developments shall incorporate the 
regulations set forth in both Subsections dealing specifically with "PD-R" and "PD-C" 
developments, except that the minimum perimeter buffer area may be reduced or not required if 
the "PD-M" development is on Delmar Boulevard between Kingsland Avenue and the eastern 
municipal limits, the broadly described boundaries of the University City Loop special business 
district established in Section 120.900. If an unresolved conflict between those regulations occurs 
(such as between common open space versus site coverage), the applicant shall set forth the 
reasons for such discrepancy and the proposed resolution. Any discrepancies between the two 
(2) sets of regulations and the resolution thereof shall be set forth in the map amendment 
ordinance and/or the resolution approving the development. The resolution thereof shall be 
pursuant to staff recommendation or as set forth by the Plan Commission in the map amendment 
ordinance. 

  
 
Section 400.1190 Screening Between Non-Residential and Residential Zoning Districts:  
  

B. In situations where a residential subdivision (more than three (3) lots) or other multiple dwelling 
unit development is constructed on a site that is abutting or adjacent to commercial or an "IC" 
zoned lot, the developer of the residential subdivision or development shall provide the following 
increase in setbacks and screening: 

1. The minimum setback for the principal residential buildings shall be increased by ten (10) 
feet along the common property line separating the residential and commercial or "IC" 
Zoning District. A permanent buffer strip of a minimum of ten (10) feet shall be 
established adjacent to and parallel to said common property line(s). This strip shall be 
indicated on the approved subdivision plat and/or development plan and annotated with 
the following statement: "This strip is reserved for landscape screening. The placement 
of buildings or other structures hereon is prohibited."  

2. Within this buffer strip, there shall be a landscaped area planted with one (1) evergreen 
tree for every twenty (20) lineal feet of common property line. In addition, combinations 
of canopy trees, ornamental trees and shrubs shall be provided as approved by the Zoning 
Administrator, provided that such landscaping will effectively screen the non-residential 
uses from the view of the abutting residential zoned properties. 

3. In addition, there shall be placed at the property line a neat, clean and maintained sight-
proof fence or wall having a minimum height of six (6) feet, but not more than eight (8) 
feet. 

M - 1 - 9

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293314%2328293314&c=E,1,LMVUsXD7P4cLoMzCLklQe45wMKBQqZ0dfAV8x2QTaHszO2vtINUwggyEogRvOPMOtSae15oQVfjrnAmdM00P9G0FpdwBCpAfMsoSJc397dJD7-Lftl3htq1S&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293316%2328293316&c=E,1,jwuiMQaYcR8ExYmvJO3_m31Izl-8lo3aHI7fP4QJymjRq0MpmV25gYLTCwcSva-ZhEWqYXI4oLjXSeHKhUZBb7MXuJm3t4ZcgGLbhS5G&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293317%2328293317&c=E,1,dfEnKiwfjvJPDCYJsgHft_asaDJ4PE8SGAfopV-vZaUrjRikY4So_xhyZpjnPV2xJ0Op7FQ6ZIgKsH2yaAnW1KIEvYS3afdfZnaX6Cujtv2H&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293318%2328293318&c=E,1,00j_VXktxfGaU0MDP_B6trYwDjPKkyTF2msQjfH4ctk0rVeGM6kUbCuHI8C3uJSoEDJoIqY5SlgQ9NgiZLmYbEyRFYbgqCp6IDJmDyAasi1_RUW9LoLe&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1


The setbacks and screening in this Subsection may be reduced or not required under the planned 
development procedure in Article IV, Division 11 of this Chapter provided the development is on Delmar 
Boulevard between Kingsland Avenue and the eastern municipal limits, the broadly described 
boundaries of the University City Loop special business district established in Section 120.900.  

Section 2.    Zoning Code Section 400.2130 of the University City Municipal Code, relating or 
applicable to planned developments, is hereby amended by adding Subsection G therein, which shall 
read as follows:  

G. Planned Developments. Exceptions in this Section authorized under the conditional use
procedure may be authorized for planned developments under the planned development
procedure in Article IV, Division 11 of this Chapter, and the same exception standards and
maximum reductions in parking and loading spaces shall apply under either procedure and may
be adjusted by the City Council to the same extent allowed under Section 400.2700.D.2 for
conditional uses.

Section 3.    This ordinance shall not be construed so as to relieve any person, firm or corporation 
from any penalty incurred by the violation of Sections 400.760.D, 400.780.E, 400.1190.B or 400.2130 
of the University City Municipal Code, nor bar the prosecution of any such violation. 

        Section 4.    Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall, 
upon conviction thereof, be subject to the penalties provided in Section 400.2570 of the University City 
Municipal Code. 

        Section 5.    This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as provided 
by law. 

PASSED and ADOPTED this 8th day of January, 2024.  

____________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 
            City Clerk 

CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 

_____________________________________ 
             City Attorney 

M - 1 - 10



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

UB20240108-02

REZ 23-02– Application for a Zoning Map Amendment and approval of a Preliminary 
Development Plan for Subtext Acquisitions, LLC at 6630, 6640, 6650, 6654 Delmar Boulevard.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development

Unfin Bus - Bill 9533 yes

City Manager recommends approval.  Subtext developers submitted a letter indicating their 
intention to meet our parking standards.  The letter was received after the Planning 
Commission considered the amendments.

N/A

N/A

At the Plan Commission meeting on December 6, 2023, the Plan Commission did not take any action on REZ 23-02, affirming 
the October 25, 2023, meeting decision. The Commission also did not take action on the Preliminary Development Plan at the 
December 6, 2023 meeting, again affirming its October 25, 2023 meeting decision regarding the Preliminary Development 
Plan. 

Since the Plan Commission meeting on December 6, 2023, the Applicant has agreed to comply with the City's parking 
regulations and have proposed a new Section 400.2130G. See attached letter from Subtext to the City Manager dated 
December 15, 2023.

Attached are the Plan Commission Transmittal Letter, Staff Report from the December 6, 2023 
Plan Commission meeting - amended to include for the City Council the Plan Commission's 
recommendation, Preliminary Development Plan, and a Draft Ordinance and  the letter from 
Subtext to the City Manager dated December 15, 2023.

Economic Development, Encourage High-quality Growth, Improved Infrastructure, 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose January 8, 2024

M - 2 - 1



  

 
 

 
 
December 6, 2023 
 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE: Zoning Map Amendment – Subtext Acquisitions, LLC (REZ 23-02) 

 

Dear Ms. Reese, 
 
At a regularly scheduled meeting on October 25, 2023 at 975 Pennsylvania Avenue 
(Community Center) and on December 6, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. in the 5th Floor Council 
Chambers at City Hall (6801 Delmar Boulevard), the Plan Commission considered the 
application of Subtext Acquisitions, LLC for a Zoning Map Amendment for 6630, 6640, 
6650, 6654 Delmar Boulevard (a.k.a. The Commerce Bank Site), and to further consider 
approval of a Preliminary Development Plan.  
   
By a vote of 6 to 0, the Plan Commission did not take any action on REZ 23-02 at the 
December 6, 2023 meeting, affirming the October 25, 2023, meeting decision. The 
Commission also did not take action on the Preliminary Development Plan at the 
December 6, 2023, meeting, again affirming its October 25, 2023 meeting decision 
regarding the Preliminary Development Plan. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 
 

Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

M - 2 - 2



STAFF REPORT (UPDATED FOR DECEMBER 6, 2023) 
*Updates to this staff report are indicated in bold, blue text* 

City Council 
 

Meeting Date December 20, 2023 (Presented October 25, 2023 and December 6, 2023) 

File Number REZ-23-02 

Council District 1 

Location 6630, 6640, 6650, 6654 Delmar Boulevard 

Applicant Subtext Acquisitions, LLC 

Property Owner 6630, 6650 Delmar Blvd: Commerce Bank 
6640, 6654 Delmar Blvd: Washington University in St. Louis 

Request Map Amendment from Core Commercial (CC) to Planned Development – 
Mixed-Use (PD-M) and to further consider approval of a Preliminary 
Development Plan 

 

 
Comprehensive Plan Conformance:  
[ X ] Yes  [  ] No      [  ] No reference 
 
Staff Recommendation:    
[  ] Approval [ X ] Approval with Conditions [  ] Denial 
 
Attachments: 

A. Application 
B. Property Owner Authorizations   
C. Narrative 
D. Site Plans 
E. Geotechnical Report 
F. Architectural Plans & Renderings 
G. Landscape Plans 
H. Traffic Impact Study 
I. Parking Sufficiency Memo 
J. Exhibit A – Parking Analysis 

 
 
Applicant Request 
The applicant, Subtext, LLC, is requesting a Map Amendment rezoning from Core Commercial (CC) to 
Planned Development Mixed-Use (PD-M) and further approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for a 
mixed-use development at 6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard. The development would include 329 dwelling 
units and approximately 8,000 square feet of retail/restaurant space.  
 
 
 

M - 2 - 3



Existing Property 
The subject property consists of four parcels located at 6630, 6640, 6650, and 6654 Delmar Boulevard. 
There are two existing commercial buildings on the property, one of which is a one-story former 
Commerce Bank retail location with additional retail and restaurant tenant space. The Commerce Bank 
building was originally built in 1953, according to St. Louis County Assessor data. The other existing 
building is the former Craft Alliance building, built in 1930. Commerce Bank owns a majority of the 
property (6630 and 6650 Delmar), and Washington University owns the Craft Alliance site (6640 Delmar) 
and the small parcel adjacent to it (6654 Delmar). Both buildings on the property are vacant, and 
remaining areas of the parcels are occupied by parking lots. There is on-street parking available on three 
sides of the property (Delmar, Leland, and Loop South). 
 
The entire property is zoned Core Commercial (CC) and consists of 1.98 acres. Neither of the existing 
buildings are designated historic sites nor is any part of the property in a historic district. However, the 
site is within 300 feet of three historic districts: University City Civic Complex Historic District (Local), 
Delmar Loop – Parkview Gardens Historic District (National), and Parkview Historic District (Local). When 
properties are within 300 feet of a historic district, the code requires building permits to be forwarded to 
the Historic Preservation Commission for interpretation, advice and recommendations. No part of the 
property is within a floodplain. 
 

 
 
 

Existing Zoning & Land Use Surrounding Zoning & Land Use 

Existing Zoning:  Core Commercial (CC) North: Core Commercial (CC); Elevator 
apartments, restaurant, retail 

Existing Land Use: Vacant (formerly occupied by 
bank, retail, and restaurant) 

East: Core Commercial (CC); Retail, 
restaurant, and office 

Proposed Zoning: Planned Development – Mixed-
Use (PD-M) 

South: High Density Residential (HR); 
Elevator apartments, garden 
apartments, attached single-
family, single-family 

M - 2 - 4



Proposed Land Use: Mixed-use: residential (elevator 
apartments, townhomes), retail, 
restaurant 

West: Core Commercial (CC); Retail, 
restaurant 

 
Surrounding Zoning 

 
Analysis 
Land Use and Zoning 
The proposed development includes 329 dwelling units, 3,644 square feet of restaurant space, and 4,466 
square feet of retail space. Of the 329 dwelling units, 319 are elevator-type dwellings on the floors above 
ground level: 54 studios, 49 one-bedroom units, 140 two-bedroom units, and 76 three-bedroom units. 
The remaining ten dwelling units are two-story town-house dwellings with two bedrooms and two 
bathrooms each, with direct access from the ground level and internal access from inside the building.  
 
The above uses are considered permitted uses in the Planned Development – Mixed-Use District per 
§400.760(D). However, the zoning code does not currently address elevator-type dwellings that exceed a 
floor area ratio (FAR) of 3.0. As currently proposed, the overall FAR of the mixed-use building is 3.69. 
Therefore, a Text Amendment would be required to permit an elevator-type dwelling with an FAR greater 
than 3.0 (see concurrently proposed TXT-23-04). 
 
Dimensional Regulations 
PD-M developments are subject to the dimensional regulations set forth for Planned Development – 
Residential (PD-R) and Planned Development – Commercial (PD-C), and if there is an unresolved conflict 
between the PD-R and PD-C regulations, those discrepancies are required to be explained and a resolution 
proposed. In addition, there are relevant dimensional regulations in Article V, Division 4 (Supplementary 
Residential Development Standards) and Article V, Division 6 (Landscaping and Screening Requirements). 
The proposed PD-M development meets the dimensional regulations in the code sections listed above, 
with two exceptions that are described below. 

Subject Property 

Municipal 
Lot 4 

U City Library 

Post 
Office Vintage 

Vinyl 

M - 2 - 5



 
1. Conflict with Perimeter Buffer Requirements per §400.780(C)(6)(b) and §400.780(D)(4) 

PD-R and PD-C developments require perimeter buffers in certain situations. PD-R 
developments require a 30-foot-wide buffer when abutting a commercial or industrial use or 
zoning district. Abutting is defined in Article II Definitions as “having a common border with, 
or being separated from such a common border by a right-of-way or easement for a street, 
alley, pedestrian way, utilities or storm drainage.” By this definition, the proposed PD-M 
development abuts commercial uses and zoning districts at its west, north, and east property 
lines. Therefore, the 30-foot-wide buffer would be required along those three sides of the 
property. Additionally, PD-C developments require a 50-foot-wide buffer when abutting a 
residential zoning district. Therefore, the proposed PD-M development would require a 50-
wide buffer along its south property line where it abuts a High Density Residential (HR) zoning 
district, with the Loop South right-of-way in between. These buffers require dense 
landscaping and screening between the abutting uses/zoning districts.  

With the above requirements, the development would require buffers on all four sides of the 
property, decreasing the buildable area of the property from 86,297 square feet of total lot 
area to 39,227 square feet of buildable lot area (54.5% reduction). It is staff’s opinion that 
these buffers are not appropriate for the proposed development for three reasons. First, the 
required buffers are not consistent with the existing character of the Delmar Loop and 
abutting properties. Second, requiring a 30-foot-wide buffer at the north and east property 
lines (fronting Delmar and Leland) with landscaping and permanent screening from the 
“abutting” commercial uses across Delmar and Leland, would block visibility into the 
proposed ground floor retail and restaurant storefronts. This screening would have adverse 
impacts on maintaining and promoting an active streetscape that supports retail and 
restaurant businesses. Finally, the buffers would significantly limit buildable area and could 
potentially threaten the economic feasibility of redeveloping the subject property. 

Therefore, a Text Amendment is recommended to address these perimeter buffer conflicts 
(see concurrently proposed TXT-23-04). 

2. Conflict with Landscaping & Screening Requirements per §400.1190(B)(1) 
Article V, Division 6 (Landscaping and Screening Requirements) of the zoning code requires 
an increase in setbacks (10-foot increase) and screening (dense evergreen tree plantings and 
a minimum 6-foot-tall privacy fence) when multi-family developments abut commercial 
zoning districts. It is staff’s opinion that these requirements are not appropriate for the 
proposed development for similar reasons described above for the perimeter buffer conflict. 

Therefore, a Text Amendment is recommended to address these increased landscaping and 
screening conflicts (see concurrently proposed TXT-23-04). 

 
Finally, Article V, Division 4 (Supplementary Residential Development Standards) sets forth additional 
dimensional regulations for elevator-type dwellings and town-house dwellings. A few of the standards set 
forth in this Division of the zoning code are not met by the proposed development. However, deviation 
from the strict application of these supplementary residential standards is permitted under the provisions 
of a planned development per §400.1110. The purpose of planned development districts is to: 

“provide a means of achieving greater flexibility in development of land in a manner not always 
possible in conventional zoning districts; to encourage a more imaginative and innovative design 
of projects; to promote a more desirable community environment; and to retain maximum control 
over both the design and future operation of the development.” (§400.720(A)) 

M - 2 - 6



Off-Street Parking Requirements 
Without any of the reductions allowed in the zoning code, the proposed development requires a total of 
699 parking spaces, 607 of which are required for the residential uses, 20 for visitors of the building’s 
residents, 49 for the restaurant use, and 23 for the retail use. The applicant is requesting a reduction in 
the required number of parking spaces to a total of 379 parking spaces (1 per dwelling unit plus 50 spaces 
for the retail, restaurant, and visitor parking combined).  
 
As currently written in the zoning code, reductions in parking (or exceptions to the minimum number of 
required parking spaces) can be granted through a few provisions. These include when a development is 
within 500 feet of a transit stop/station (10% reduction); shared parking arrangements (when different 
uses have different peak parking periods); when public parking is allocated for the development (with a 
fee per parking space allocated); and/or through Conditional Use Permit (up to 20% reduction).  
 
In late 2019, the Plan Commission recommended, and City Council approved, the removal of a provision 
exempting redevelopments (including the construction of new buildings) in the Core Commercial (CC) 
zoning district from meeting the minimum number of required parking spaces. The original intent of this 
provision was to encourage redevelopment in the Delmar Loop and promote a walkable environment. 
When the provision was removed, the intent was to “effectively address the negative impacts of excessive 
on-street parking demands” (staff memo to City Council). Since 2019, no new construction 
redevelopments have been approved in the Delmar Loop. This trend may be a sign that the City’s parking 
standards can be a deterrent in the Delmar Loop, where space is tight and the proximity of restaurants, 
shops, and entertainment venues, and overall walkable environment are one of its main attractions. 
 
The existing provisions for parking reduction are not sufficient to approve the proposed number of parking 
spaces (329 379). Therefore, a Text Amendment would be necessary to permit the proposed reduction in 
parking spaces (see proposed TXT-23-04). TXT-23-04 would create a provision that allows modification of 
the off-street parking requirements through the Planned Development procedure if the modification 
meets the conditional use permit review criteria set forth in §400.2710. The applicant has included with 
their application a parking sufficiency memo from CBB Transportation Engineers stating that the proposed 
number of parking spaces meets the average parking demand. This opinion is based on parking demand 
data from the Institute of Traffic Engineers (ITE) Parking General Manual for the proposed uses. 
 
Since the October 25, 2023 meeting, the City hired two transportation engineering firms to review the 
results of the Parking Sufficiency Memo (attached to this staff report) which was prepared by the 
applicant’s consultant. Both firms confirmed that the methodology in the Parking Sufficiency Memo is 
sound and advised that 425 parking spaces is sufficient for the proposed development. 
 
In addition, the viability of the Preliminary Development Plan recommended on 10/25/23 relative to 
the recommended provisions in TXT-23-04 related to parking requirements has become problematic. 
The proposed development must comply with the existing parking requirements and existing 
provisions for parking reductions outlined in Section 400.2130. TXT-23-04 has been amended (see 
separate staff report) to reflect this, and additional analysis has been provided on the authorized 
parking reductions (see Exhibit A, attached to this staff report).   
 
It is staff’s opinion that the CUP review criteria (400.2710) and the General Standards for approval of a 
development plan (400.780(A)) are satisfied for the requested modification to the parking requirements, 
and that the reduction in the required parking would be appropriate, given the following: 

• CBB Transportation Engineer’s parking sufficiency memo (attached) 
• Good access to public transportation:  

M - 2 - 7



o 14-minute walk to University City-Big Bend MetroLink Station (Blue Line) 
o 15-minute walk to Delmar Loop MetroLink station (Red Line) 
o 0-minute walk to bus stop for MetroBus Route 97 (connections to Downtown St. Louis 

and Downtown Clayton) 
o 4-minute walk to bus stop for MetroBus Route 5 (connections to Washington University 

facilities) 
• Highly walkable location (Walk Score of 90 – “Walker’s Paradise”) 
• Bicycle friendly location (Bike Score of 70 – “Very Bikeable”) 
• Regional and national trends towards more flexible parking requirements, especially in denser, 

mixed-use environments. For example, neighborhoods such as Forest Park Southeast in St. Louis 
limit how much off-street parking a developer can build to one space per dwelling unit (regardless 
of the number of bedrooms), with the intent of encouraging density and foot traffic to support 
businesses, amenities, and services in the neighborhood. 

 
Bicycle Parking  
The proposed development appears to provide sufficient off-street bicycle parking spaces per §400.2145. 
A dedicated bicycle storage room is provided on the ground floor with direct access from the sidewalk 
along Leland Avenue. 
 
Loading 
Off-street loading spaces have been provided per the requirements set forth in §400.2150. 
 
Site Coverage 
Planned Development – Commercial (PD-C) developments are limited to a site coverage of 70%, but if the 
proposed development can demonstrate compliance with four or more of the performance criteria set 
forth in §400.780(D)(2), site coverage can be increased to 90% maximum. The proposed development has 
86.6% site coverage. Site coverage is defined in the zoning code as “the area of the site which is covered 
by buildings, driveways, parking lots, loading areas, but excluding open spaces, plazas, pedestrian 
circulation, and buffer areas.” The applicant has demonstrated compliance with the following criteria: 

• Install storm drainage detention facilities underground 
• Providing for screened loading and unloading areas 
• Providing for mixed-use developments that include community facilities that further the goals, 

objectives and policies of the Comprehensive Plan 
• Demonstration of a development using innovative architectural, site planning and land use design 

and of such quality as to set an excellent example for subsequent development or redevelopment 
projects 

  
2005 Comprehensive Plan 
The future land use map of the Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property as “Mixed-Use/Transit 
Oriented Development”. The intended land uses for this category include a combination of commercial, 
professional and/or residential uses should occur or be encouraged. Land use activities in “Mixed-
Use/Transit Oriented Development” should be neighborhood serving or community serving; mixed uses 
may be a single building, a group of buildings or a multiple block district. The proposed use of the subject 
property is consistent with the purpose and intent of this land use category.  
 
2023 Comprehensive Plan 
The 2023 Comprehensive Plan was unanimously adopted by the Plan Commission by resolution on 
September 27, 2023. Once approved by the City Council, the 2023 Comprehensive Plan will go into full 
effect and will replace the 2005 Comprehensive Plan. The proposed development furthers the 2023 plan’s 

M - 2 - 8



emphasis on encouraging denser, mixed-use development, particularly in Activity Centers, and reducing 
parking requirements where appropriate. The future character and land use map of the 2023 plan 
identifies the subject property as an “Activity Center” and is within the “Loop Activity Center Overlay”. 
The uses and character of the proposed development are consistent with both place types. 
 
Previously Held Public Meetings for the Proposed Development 
Below is a summary of previously held public meetings and events to obtain feedback on the proposed 
development from City Boards & Commissions and neighboring residents. 

• July 26, 2023 – Plan Commission working session 
• August 11, 2023 – Community open-house event 
• September 19, 2023 – Community open-house event  
• September 27, 2023 – Plan Commission working session  
• October 10, 2023 – Loop Special Business District Board meeting 
• October 11, 2023 – Traffic Commission meeting 

 

Plan Commission Meeting 

At the Plan Commission meeting on December 6, 2023, the Plan Commission did not take any action on 
REZ 23-02, affirming the October 25, 2023, meeting decision. The Commission also did not take action 
on the Preliminary Development Plan at the December 6, 2023 meeting, again affirming its October 25, 
2023 meeting decision regarding the Preliminary Development Plan. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the Map Amendment and Preliminary Development Plan as presented in 
the attached documents, with the following conditions: 
 

1. The recommendation is contingent upon City Council approval of TXT-23-04. 
2. The development shall be subject to the standards set forth in 400.590(C) through 400.590(F). 
3. The recommendation of the Preliminary Development Plan is contingent upon the City 

verification of the parking analysis prior to the Preliminary Development Plan being presented 
to City Council. 

4. A reduction in the number of parking spaces is approved, from 699 to 461 required spaces, per 
analysis in Exhibit A, attached to this staff report, with the following conditions: 

a. All 461 parking spaces shall be made available to all uses within the development. In 
the event some spaces are restricted for a particular use, the development must comply 
with the shared parking table requirements to reflect that some of the spaces will not 
be shared among all uses. 

b. The applicant shall satisfy the 461 required parking spaces by either providing all the 
required spaces on-site, or by paying to the City a fee for pro rata share of the cost of 
constructing and maintaining Municipal Lot No. 4. 

c. In the event the final development plan has changes to the Preliminary Development 
Plan that affect the minimum number required by Chapter 400, Article VII, the minimum 
number shall increase or decrease accordingly.  

M - 2 - 9



M - 2 - 10



TOTAL TRACT

LE
LA

N
D

 (5
5'

w
) A

VE
.

S. LOOP STREET

DELMAR (80'w)  BLVD.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

D
EL

M
AR

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D
 &

 L
EL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y,

 M
O

 6
31

30

LO
CA

L 
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

/P
LA

T 
FO

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

66
00

\2
19

66
81

\6
68

1.
3\

C
iv

il\
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y\
66

81
.3

_b
as

e.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
02

.0
-E

XI
ST

IN
G

 A
LT

A 
SU

R
VE

Y 
 P

LO
TT

ED
:  

O
ct

 1
1,

  2
02

3 
- 1

1:
23

am
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 jo

sh
.b

ar
cu

s

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

EXISTING ALTA
SURVEY

C2.0
M - 2 - 11



TOTAL TRACT

PARKING
521'

BIKE &
STORAGE

RETAIL
TRASH/
BOH

TRASH

1,216 SF
RETAIL

3,249 SF
RETAIL

3,646SF
RESTAURANT

5,230 SF
RESIDENTIAL

LOADING

527 SF
LOBBY

TRASH

BOH

PET SPAFE
N

CE
D 

DO
G 

RU
N

(IR
RI

GA
TE

D 
TU

RF
)

ENTRY
PORTAL/

VESTIBULE

3,071 SF
LOBBY

2,434 SF
PATIO

(140 BIKES)

LE
LA

N
D

 (5
5'

w
) A

VE
.

S. LOOP STREET

DELMAR (80'w)  BLVD.

CURB INLET.
(TRAPPED)
T 520.36
FL 514.36

MANHOLE
T 517.25
FL 499.71

MANHOLE
T 517.38
FL(w) 502.46
FL(e) 497.57

MANHOLE
T 514.12
FL 498.92

PROPOSED
SEWER

EASEMENT

N

S

EW

CURB INLET.
(TRAPPED)
T 518.08
FL(s)  511.19
FL(w) 509.37

MANHOLE
T 517.50
FL(w) 508.74
FL(s) 499.68

MANHOLE
T 521.95

FL 512.60
3

MANHOLE
T 520.60
FL 508.17

2

1

4

5

6

7
8

MANHOLE
T 518.15
FL 512.19

9

EX1

EX2

SAND/OIL
SEPARATOR

FOR INTERNAL
GARAGE DRAINS

POOL DRAIN
LATERALSAMPLING

MANHOLE

RESIDENTIAL
SANITARY
LATERAL

COMMERCIAL
SANITARY
LATERAL

COMMERCIAL
SANITARY
LATERAL

RESIDENTIAL
SANITARY

LATERAL

TAP PER MAWC
STANDARDS.

8" FULL FLOW
FIRE METER

PROPOSED ELECTRIC
FEED. COORDINATE WITH

AMEREN.

PROPOSED
UNDERGROUND

DETENTION
(FLOOD PROTECTION &
CHANNEL PROTECTION)

RELOCATED PUBLIC
COMBINED SEWER

RELOCATED PUBLIC
COMBINED SEWER

RELOCATED PUBLIC
COMBINED SEWER

RELOCATED PUBLIC
COMBINED SEWER

EXISTING GRANITE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

EXISTING CONCRETE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

EXISTING CONCRETE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

ACCESSIBLE RAMPS
@ DRIVEWAYS
(TYPICAL)

BIKE RACK
(TYP)

SIDEWALK PLANTING
AREA. SEE PLANTING

PLAN

CONCRETE PAVERS
AT RETAIL PATIO

EXISTING POST TOP
STREET LIGHTS TO
BE REINSTALLED.

ST. LOUIS WALK OF
FAME STAR PLACARD

(TYP)

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

D
EL

M
AR

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D
 &

 L
EL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y,

 M
O

 6
31

30

LO
CA

L 
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

/P
LA

T 
FO

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

66
00

\2
19

66
81

\6
68

1.
3\

C
iv

il\
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y\
66

81
.3

_b
as

e.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
03

.0
-P

R
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y-

FI
N

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

  P
LO

TT
ED

:  
O

ct
 1

1,
  2

02
3 

- 1
1:

23
am

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 jo
sh

.b
ar

cu
s

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

PRELIMINARY
DEVELOPMENT PLAN

C3.0
M - 2 - 12



N-S SITE SECTION
SCALE: 1"=20'(V)(H)

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

E-W SITE SECTION
SCALE: 1"=20'(V)(H)

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

LELAND AVE. (55' w)

R
/W

 L
IN

E

R
/W

 L
IN

E

DELMAR BLVD.  (80' w)
PARAPET ELEV. 602.50PARAPET ELEV. 602.50 ROOF ELEV. 599.00

CANITILEVER ELEV. 541.00

S. LOOP STREET

PARAPET ELEV. 602.50

PARAPET ELEV. 602.50 PARAPET ELEV. 602.50 PARAPET ELEV. 602.50 PARAPET ELEV. 602.50 PARAPET ELEV. 602.50

COURTYARD ELEV. 544.00 ROOF ELEV. 544.00

ELEVATOR
OVERRUN ELEV. 605.00

ROOF ELEV. 599.00 ROOF ELEV. 599.00 ROOF ELEV. 599.00

EXISTING
GRADE

EXISTING
GRADE

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

D
EL

M
AR

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D
 &

 L
EL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y,

 M
O

 6
31

30

LO
CA

L 
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

/P
LA

T 
FO

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

66
00

\2
19

66
81

\6
68

1.
3\

C
iv

il\
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y\
66

81
.3

_b
as

e.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
04

.0
-S

IT
E 

SE
C

TI
O

N
S 

 P
LO

TT
ED

:  
O

ct
 1

1,
  2

02
3 

- 1
1:

23
am

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 jo
sh

.b
ar

cu
s

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

SITE SECTIONS

C4.0
M - 2 - 13



TOTAL TRACT

LE
LA

N
D

 (5
5'

w
) A

VE
.

S. LOOP STREET

DELMAR (80'w)  BLVD.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

D
EL

M
AR

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D
 &

 L
EL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y,

 M
O

 6
31

30

LO
CA

L 
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

/P
LA

T 
FO

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

66
00

\2
19

66
81

\6
68

1.
3\

C
iv

il\
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y\
66

81
.3

_b
as

e.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
05

.0
-E

XI
ST

IN
G

 R
U

N
O

FF
 M

AP
  P

LO
TT

ED
:  

O
ct

 1
1,

  2
02

3 
- 1

1:
23

am
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 jo

sh
.b

ar
cu

s

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

EXISTING RUNOFF
MAP

C5.0

PRE-DEVELOPED RUNOFF: 20-yr; 20-min STORM

PAVEMENT = 1.33 Ac x 3.70 cfs/Ac = 4.92 cfs
ROOF = 0.45 Ac x 6.00 cfs/Ac = 2.70 cfs
GRASS = 0.20 Ac x 1.78 cfs/Ac = 0.36 cfs

TOTAL EXISTING RUNOFF = 7.98 c.f.s.

M - 2 - 14



LE
LA

N
D

 (5
5'

w
) A

VE
.

S. LOOP STREET

DELMAR (80'w)  BLVD.

TAP PER MAWC
STANDARDS.

8" FULL FLOW
FIRE METER

EXISTING GRANITE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

EXISTING CONCRETE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

EXISTING CONCRETE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

ACCESSIBLE RAMPS
@ DRIVEWAYS
(TYPICAL)

BIKE RACK
(TYP)

SIDEWALK PLANTING
AREA. SEE PLANTING

PLAN

CONCRETE PAVERS
AT RETAIL PATIO

EXISTING POST TOP
STREET LIGHTS TO
BE REINSTALLED.

ST. LOUIS WALK OF
FAME STAR PLACARD

(TYP)

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

D
EL

M
AR

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D
 &

 L
EL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y,

 M
O

 6
31

30

LO
CA

L 
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

/P
LA

T 
FO

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

66
00

\2
19

66
81

\6
68

1.
3\

C
iv

il\
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y\
66

81
.3

_b
as

e.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
06

.0
-P

R
O

PO
SE

D
 R

U
N

O
FF

 M
AP

  P
LO

TT
ED

:  
O

ct
 1

1,
  2

02
3 

- 1
1:

23
am

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 jo
sh

.b
ar

cu
s

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

PROPOSED RUNOFF
MAP

C6.0

POST-DEVELOPED RUNOFF: 20-yr; 20-min STORM

PAVEMENT = 0.47 Ac x 3.70 cfs/Ac = 1.74 cfs
ROOF= 1.42 Ac x 6.00 cfs/Ac = 8.52 cfs
GRASS = 0.09 Ac x 1.78 cfs/Ac = 0.16 cfs

TOTAL PROPOSED RUNOFF = 10.42 c.f.s.

DIFFERENTIAL RUNOFF = 10.42 cfs - 7.98 cfs = 2.44 cfs

PURSUANT TO MSD CONCEPTUAL REVIEW - 'BACK TO GRASS' EVALUATION REQUIRED

EXISTING BACK TO GRASS = 1.98 Ac x 1.78 cfs = 3.52 cfs

DIFFERENTIAL RUNOFF ' BACK TO GRASS' = 10.42 cfs - 3.52 cfs = 6.90 cfs.

STORMWATER DETENTION REQUIRED FOR 2-yr; 24-hr & 100-yr; 24-hr STORM EVENTS.

CHANNEL PROTECTION NOT REQUIRED BY MSD, BUT TO BE PROVIDED .

M - 2 - 15



INTRODUCED BY:________________     DATE:__________ 
 
BILL NO.: 95 33           ORDINANCE NO.______ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 400.070 OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY 
MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, BY AMENDING SAID 
MAP SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY AT 6630-6654 DELMAR 
BOULEVARD FROM CORE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT ("CC") TO PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT - MIXED USE DISTRICT ("PD-M"). 
  
        WHEREAS, Chapter 400 (Zoning Code) of the University City Municipal Code divides the City 
of University City, Missouri (City) into several zoning districts and establishes standards therein to 
which land, buildings, structures and their uses must conform; and 
  
        WHEREAS, in a meeting held on October 25, 2023, the City Plan Commission examined an 
amendment of the Official Zoning Map of the City which changes the classification of property at 
6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard from Core Commercial District ("CC") to Planned Development - 
Mixed Use District ("PD-M"), and recommended to the City Council that the amendment be approved; 
and 
  
        WHEREAS, due notice of a public hearing to be held by the City Council in the City Council 
Chambers at City Hall at 6:30 p.m. on January 8, 2024, was duly published on December 22, 2023 in 
the St. Louis Countian, a newspaper of general circulation within the City; and 
  
        WHEREAS, the public hearing was held at the time and place specified in said notice, and all 
suggestions or objections concerning the amendment of the Official Zoning Map of the City were duly 
heard and considered by the City Council. 
  
        NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
  
        Section 1.    Section 400.070 of the University City Municipal Code, relating to the Official 
Zoning Map, is hereby amended by amending the Official Zoning Map illustrating the zoning districts 
established pursuant to Section 400.070, for property at 6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard, so as to change 
the classification of said property from Core Commercial District ("CC") to Planned Development - 
Mixed Use District ("PD-M"). The following land uses and developments may be permitted in said 
PD-M District, subject to approval of a final development plan: retail stores, banks, restaurants, 
elevator-type dwellings and town-house dwellings. 
  
        Section 2.    The property at 6630 Delmar, totaling approximately 1.981 acres, is more fully 
described with a legal description, attached hereto, marked "Exhibit A" and made a part hereof. 
  
        Section 3.    By Resolution No. 2023-__, the City Council approved a preliminary development 
plan known as "Local University City," and authorized the preparation of a final development plan.  
A final development plan and plat must be approved by the City Council prior to the issuance of any 
building permits in connection with the development. A landscape plan shall be submitted for review 
and approval with the final development plan. The number of dwelling units shall not exceed 329. 
  

M - 2 - 16



        Section 4.    This ordinance shall not be construed so as to relieve any person, firm or corporation 
from any penalty incurred by the violation of Section 400.070 of the University City Municipal Code, 
nor bar the prosecution of any such violation. 
  
        Section 5.    Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to the penalties provided in Section 400.2570 of the 
University City Municipal Code. 
  
        Section 6.    This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as provided 
by law. 
 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this ________ day of ____________, 2024. 
 
 

________________________________ 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 

  CITY CLERK 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 

 CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M - 2 - 17



 
 
EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR REZONING 
 
A tract of land being part of lots 5 through 15 of Rosedale Heights, a subdivision according to the plat 
thereof as recorded in Plat Book 2, Page 60 of the St Louis County records, located in US Survey 378, 
Township 45 North, Range 6 East of the Fifth Principal Meridian, University City, St. Louis County, 
Missouri being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the intersection of south right-of-way line of Delmar Boulevard, 80 feet wide, as 
established by Book 3811, Page 352 of above said records with the west right-of-way line of Leland 
Ave, 55 feet wide; thence along said west right-of-way line,  South 03 degrees 00 minutes 32 seconds 
West, 164.34 feet to its intersection with the north right-of-way line of a South Loop Street, 55 feet 
wide; thence along said right-of-way line, North 87 degrees 14 minutes 00 seconds West, 525.11 feet 
to the east line of a tract of land as conveyed to BST Delmar, LLC by instrument recorded in Book 
19826, Page 1172 of above said records; thence along said east line, North 03 degrees 00 minutes 32 
seconds East, 164.34 feet to the south right-of-way line of above said Delmar Boulevard; thence along 
said right-of-way line, South 87 degrees 14 minutes 0 seconds East, 525.11 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 
 
Containing 86,294 square feet or 1.981 acres, more or less. 
 
 

M - 2 - 18



M - 2 - 19



 
DECEMBER 15, 2023 
 

SPECIAL MEETING REQUEST 3000 LOCUST ST. 
ST. LOUIS, MO 63103 

(314) 502-1020 

SUBTEXTLIVING.COM 

 VIA EMAIL: grose@ucitymo.org 
 
The City of University City, Missouri 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
St. Louis, Missouri 63130 
Attn: Gregory Rose, City Manager 
 
Re: TXT-23-04; REZ-23-02; SUB-23-02 
 
Dear City Manager, 
 
Please allow this letter to express Subtext Acquisitions, LLC (the “Applicant”)’s support in 
approving the following text amendment to the City’s Zoning Code that allows for procedural 
flexibility in obtaining the necessary approvals to provide parking for planned district 
developments: 
 
New Section 400.2130.G. Planned Developments. Exceptions in this Section authorized under 
the conditional use procedure may be authorized for planned developments under the planned 
development procedure in Article IV, Division 11 of this Chapter, and the same exception 
standards and maximum reductions in parking and loading spaces shall apply under either 
procedure and may be adjusted by the City Council to the same extent allowed under Section 
400.2700.D.2 for conditional uses.  
 
The Plan Commission, on December 6, 2023, recommended a text amendment that in addition 
to procedural flexibility allows for modifications to current off-street parking requirements 
through the planned development procedure. Please note that Subtext agrees to comply with 
the parking calculations and requirements as set forth in the current Zoning Code for its 
development of 6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard (the “Site”), so the Plan Commission's 
recommendation on such modifications is not needed nor requested by the Applicant.  
 
The Applicant respectfully requests the immediate introduction of legislation adopting the 
above new Section 400.2130.G at a special meeting held before the end of the year, so that the 
City Council may consider final passage of such legislation at its meeting on January 8, 2024. 
The Applicant also respectfully requests that at the same special meeting, the City Council 
introduce legislation amending the Zoning Map for the Site (REZ 23-02) and approving a final 
plat for lot consolidation at the Site (SUB-23-02), as recommended by the Plan Commission on 
October 25, 2023, and that a resolution approving the preliminary development plan for the Site 
be introduced at the special meeting or on January 8, 2024 (REZ 23-02) and passed on January 8, 
2024, as recommended by Plan Commission on December 6, 2023.   
 

M - 2 - 20



DECEMBER 15, 2023 
 

SPECIAL MEETING REQUEST PAGE 2 
 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
Ryan Bumb 
Development Manager 
Subtext Acquisitions, LLC 
 

c.c. John Mulligan, Esq., City Attorney 
 Rob Klahr, Esq., Counsel for Subtext 

M - 2 - 21



M - 2 - 22



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

UB20240108-03

SUB 23-02 – Application for a Application for a Major Subdivision - Consolidation Plat for 
6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development

Unfin Bus - Bill 9534 yes

I concur with the Planning Commission's recommendation.

N/A

N/A

The Plan Commission considered the Consolidation Plat for the Subtext development at the 
October 25, 2023 meeting. Staff indicated that the Final Plat meets all requirements of 
Sections 405.165 and 405.380 of the Subdivision and Land Development Regulations and 
recommended approval. The plat to consolidate the five (5) lots into one lot was approved 
unanimously by the Plan Commission. 

Attached are the Plan Commission Transmittal Letter, Staff Report from the October 25, 2023 Plan 
Commission meeting - amended to include for the City Council the Plan Commission's 
recommendation, and a Draft Ordinance. 

Economic Development, Encourage High-quality Growth, Improved Infrastructure, 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose January 8, 2024

M - 3 - 1



October 25, 2023 

Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 

RE: Major Subdivision – Record Plat (SUB 23-02) 

Dear Ms. Reese, 

At a regularly scheduled meeting on October 25 25, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. at 975 
Pennsylvania Avenue (Community Center), the Plan Commission considered the 
application of Subtext Acquisitions, LLC for Final Plat Approval of a proposed major 
subdivision for 6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard.   

By a vote of 7 to 0, the Plan Commission recommended approval of said major 
subdivision. 

Sincerely, 

Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 

Plan Commission
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168  
 

M - 3 - 2



  
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-
6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council 
 
MEETING DATE:   December 20, 2023 
 
FILE NUMBER:   SUB 23-02 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:   1 
 
Location:    6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard 
 
Applicant:    Subtext, LLC 
 
Request: Major Subdivision – Lot Consolidation  
 
Existing Zoning:   “CC” Core Commercial 
Proposed Zoning:   “PD-M” District (via REZ 23-02) 
Existing Land Use:   Vacant, commercial 
Proposed Land Use:   Multi-family residential, Elevator Apartments 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 
North:     CC – Core Commercial 
East:      CC – Core Commercial 
South:     HR – High Density Residential 
West:      CC – Core Commercial    
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No   [ x ] No reference 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[x] Approval    [  ] Approval with Conditions     [ ] Denial 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Preliminary Plat 
 
Existing Property and Applicant Request 
The subject property is 1.981 acres in size. There are five (5) parcels that are proposed to be 
consolidated into a single lot to accommodate the Subtext Multi-family development. 
 
 
Staff Review  
Staff reviewed this as part of the “Major Subdivision” process identified in Section 405.165 of the 
Subdivision regulations.  
 M - 3 - 3



Analysis 
Staff has determined that the Plat meets all requirements of 405.380 of the Subdivision and 
Land Development Regulations.     
 
Conclusion/Recommendation 
The proposal meets the intent of all Zoning Code and Subdivision Regulation requirements for a 
Final Plat.  Thus, staff recommends approval of the proposed Major Subdivision. 
 
Plan Commission Meeting 
At the Plan Commission meeting on October 25, 2023, the Plan Commission voted 
unanimously to approve SUB 23-02. 
 
 

M - 3 - 4



INTRODUCED BY:________________     DATE:__________ 
 
BILL NO.: 95 34       ORDINANCE NO. 
 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF A 
TRACT OF LAND TO BE KNOWN AS "LOCAL UNIVERSITY CITY." 

 

        WHEREAS, an application was submitted by Subtext Acquisitions, LLC for the approval 
of a final subdivision plat of a tract of land at 6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard to be known as 
"Local University City"; and 

        WHEREAS, at its meeting on October 25, 2023, the University City Plan Commission 
reviewed the final plat for the major subdivision and determined that the final plat is in 
substantial compliance with the requirements of the University City Municipal Code and 
recommended to the City Council approval of the final plat; and 

        WHEREAS, the final plat for the major subdivision application, including all required 
documents submitted therewith, is before the City Council for its consideration. 

        NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

        Section 1.    Attached, marked "Exhibit A", and made a part hereof is a final subdivision of 
a tract of land to be known as "Local University City." 

        Section 2.    It is hereby found and determined that the final plat for the major subdivision is 
in full compliance with the University City Municipal Code, including Sections 405.380 and 
405.390. Accordingly, the final plat for the major subdivision marked "Exhibit A" is hereby 
approved. 

        Section 3.    The City Clerk is hereby directed to endorse upon the final plat for the major 
subdivision the approval of the City Council under the hand of the City Clerk and the seal of the 
City of University City. 

        Section 4.    This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 

 

      

M - 3 - 5



   PASSED and ADOPTED this 8th day of January, 2024. 

 
 

________________________________ 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 

  CITY CLERK 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 

 CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 

M - 3 - 6



 

M - 3 - 7



M - 3 - 8



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

NB20240108-01

Preliminary Plan Approval – Adoption of a Resolution to approve the Preliminary 
Development Plan for Local University City, also known as the Subtext Development.

John L. Wagner                                                  Planning and Development               

New Business - Res 2024-01 yes

City Manager concurs with the Plan Commission and recommends approval.

N/A

N/A

The Preliminary Development Plan was approved by the Plan Commission on October 25, 
2023 with the Map Amendment for REZ 23-02. 
 
 
 
                                                             

Attached are the Plan Commission Transmittal Letter, Draft Resolution 2024-01 and the 
Preliminary Development Plan. 

Economic Development, Encourage High-quality Growth, Improved Infrastructure, 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose January 8, 2024

N - 1 - 1



  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
October 25, 2023 
 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE: Preliminary Plan Approval –Subtext (REZ 23-02) 

 
Dear Ms. Reese, 
 
At a regularly scheduled meeting, on October 25, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. at 975 
Pennsylvania Avenue (Community Center), the Plan Commission considered the 
above-referenced application by Subtext Acquisitions, LLC to approve a resolution for 
“Preliminary Plan” approval of the “Local University City” development.   
 
By a vote of 7 for and 0 against, the Plan Commission recommended approval of said 
resolution. 

 
Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 
 
 
 
 

Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

N - 1 - 2



 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-01 
 

WHEREAS, Section 400.850 of the University City Zoning Code requires that a 
preliminary development plan be approved by the City Council by adoption of a resolution 
approving said preliminary development plan, with conditions as may be specified and 
authorizing the preparation of the final development plan.  Section 400.760 of the Zoning Code 
requires that the permitted land uses and developments shall be established in the conditions of 
the ordinance adopted by the City Council governing the particular Planned Development- 
Mixed Use District (PD-M”). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
The City Council hereby authorizes the preparation of the final development plan for a 
development at 6630, 6640, 6650 and 6654 Delmar Boulevard for a mixed-use development to 
be known as “Local University City.” The development shall be developed with the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The building and property shall be developed, constructed and maintained in compliance 
with the Preliminary Development Plan/Plat dated October 11, 2023, attached hereto, 
marked “Exhibit A,” made a part hereof, and hereby approved. The footprint and general 
layout, and the height and mass, shall be as shown in the Preliminary Development 
Plan/Plat.  

2. The land uses and developments shall comply with the Zoning Map amendment for the 
development site, Ordinance No. _____, simultaneously approved. Permitted land uses 
and developments are retail stores, banks, restaurants, elevator-type dwellings and town-
house dwellings. 

3. The maximum number of dwelling units shall be 329.  

4. Accessible pedestrian ways shall be provided from the public sidewalk to each building. 

5. A landscaping plan shall be submitted for review and approval by the Zoning 
Administrator prior to issuance of a building permit. 

6. Lighting standards and illumination levels shall meet the requirements in Zoning Code 
Section 400.2110. 

7. Bicycle racks shall be provided in accordance with Zoning Code Section 400.2145. 

8. A detailed construction traffic and parking plan shall be submitted to the Zoning 
Administrator for review and approval with the Site Plan.  

9. Off-street parking and loading requirements shall be provided as required by Chapter 400, 
Article VII of the University City Zoning Code. 

10. A lot consolidation shall be completed and the final plat recorded prior to the issuance of a 
building permit. 

N - 1 - 3



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

11. Approval of the Preliminary Development Plan shall be valid for a period of two years 
from the date of City Council approval.  A final development plan shall be submitted 
within the said two-year period per Zoning Code Sections 400.860 and 400.870. 

 
 
 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this 8th day of January, 2024 

 

        _____________________________ 

        Mayor 

ATTEST 

 

____________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

N - 1 - 4



Exhibit A

N - 1 - 5



TOTAL TRACT

LE
LA

N
D

 (5
5'

w
) A

VE
.

S. LOOP STREET

DELMAR (80'w)  BLVD.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

D
EL

M
AR

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D
 &

 L
EL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y,

 M
O

 6
31

30

LO
CA

L 
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

/P
LA

T 
FO

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

66
00

\2
19

66
81

\6
68

1.
3\

C
iv

il\
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y\
66

81
.3

_b
as

e.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
02

.0
-E

XI
ST

IN
G

 A
LT

A 
SU

R
VE

Y 
 P

LO
TT

ED
:  

O
ct

 1
1,

  2
02

3 
- 1

1:
23

am
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 jo

sh
.b

ar
cu

s

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

EXISTING ALTA
SURVEY

C2.0

Exhibit A

N - 1 - 6



TOTAL TRACT

PARKING
521'

BIKE &
STORAGE

RETAIL
TRASH/
BOH

TRASH

1,216 SF
RETAIL

3,249 SF
RETAIL

3,646SF
RESTAURANT

5,230 SF
RESIDENTIAL

LOADING

527 SF
LOBBY

TRASH

BOH

PET SPAFE
N

CE
D 

DO
G 

RU
N

(IR
RI

GA
TE

D 
TU

RF
)

ENTRY
PORTAL/

VESTIBULE

3,071 SF
LOBBY

2,434 SF
PATIO

(140 BIKES)

LE
LA

N
D

 (5
5'

w
) A

VE
.

S. LOOP STREET

DELMAR (80'w)  BLVD.

CURB INLET.
(TRAPPED)
T 520.36
FL 514.36

MANHOLE
T 517.25
FL 499.71

MANHOLE
T 517.38
FL(w) 502.46
FL(e) 497.57

MANHOLE
T 514.12
FL 498.92

PROPOSED
SEWER

EASEMENT

N

S

EW

CURB INLET.
(TRAPPED)
T 518.08
FL(s)  511.19
FL(w) 509.37

MANHOLE
T 517.50
FL(w) 508.74
FL(s) 499.68

MANHOLE
T 521.95

FL 512.60
3

MANHOLE
T 520.60
FL 508.17

2

1

4

5

6

7
8

MANHOLE
T 518.15
FL 512.19

9

EX1

EX2

SAND/OIL
SEPARATOR

FOR INTERNAL
GARAGE DRAINS

POOL DRAIN
LATERALSAMPLING

MANHOLE

RESIDENTIAL
SANITARY
LATERAL

COMMERCIAL
SANITARY
LATERAL

COMMERCIAL
SANITARY
LATERAL

RESIDENTIAL
SANITARY

LATERAL

TAP PER MAWC
STANDARDS.

8" FULL FLOW
FIRE METER

PROPOSED ELECTRIC
FEED. COORDINATE WITH

AMEREN.

PROPOSED
UNDERGROUND

DETENTION
(FLOOD PROTECTION &
CHANNEL PROTECTION)

RELOCATED PUBLIC
COMBINED SEWER

RELOCATED PUBLIC
COMBINED SEWER

RELOCATED PUBLIC
COMBINED SEWER

RELOCATED PUBLIC
COMBINED SEWER

EXISTING GRANITE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

EXISTING CONCRETE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

EXISTING CONCRETE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

ACCESSIBLE RAMPS
@ DRIVEWAYS
(TYPICAL)

BIKE RACK
(TYP)

SIDEWALK PLANTING
AREA. SEE PLANTING

PLAN

CONCRETE PAVERS
AT RETAIL PATIO

EXISTING POST TOP
STREET LIGHTS TO
BE REINSTALLED.

ST. LOUIS WALK OF
FAME STAR PLACARD

(TYP)

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

D
EL

M
AR

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D
 &

 L
EL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y,

 M
O

 6
31

30

LO
CA

L 
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

/P
LA

T 
FO

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

66
00

\2
19

66
81

\6
68

1.
3\

C
iv

il\
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y\
66

81
.3

_b
as

e.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
03

.0
-P

R
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y-

FI
N

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

  P
LO

TT
ED

:  
O

ct
 1

1,
  2

02
3 

- 1
1:

23
am

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 jo
sh

.b
ar

cu
s

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

PRELIMINARY
DEVELOPMENT PLAN

C3.0

Exhibit A

N - 1 - 7



N-S SITE SECTION
SCALE: 1"=20'(V)(H)

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

E-W SITE SECTION
SCALE: 1"=20'(V)(H)

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

LELAND AVE. (55' w)

R
/W

 L
IN

E

R
/W

 L
IN

E

DELMAR BLVD.  (80' w)
PARAPET ELEV. 602.50PARAPET ELEV. 602.50 ROOF ELEV. 599.00

CANITILEVER ELEV. 541.00

S. LOOP STREET

PARAPET ELEV. 602.50

PARAPET ELEV. 602.50 PARAPET ELEV. 602.50 PARAPET ELEV. 602.50 PARAPET ELEV. 602.50 PARAPET ELEV. 602.50

COURTYARD ELEV. 544.00 ROOF ELEV. 544.00

ELEVATOR
OVERRUN ELEV. 605.00

ROOF ELEV. 599.00 ROOF ELEV. 599.00 ROOF ELEV. 599.00

EXISTING
GRADE

EXISTING
GRADE

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

D
EL

M
AR

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D
 &

 L
EL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y,

 M
O

 6
31

30

LO
CA

L 
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

/P
LA

T 
FO

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

66
00

\2
19

66
81

\6
68

1.
3\

C
iv

il\
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y\
66

81
.3

_b
as

e.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
04

.0
-S

IT
E 

SE
C

TI
O

N
S 

 P
LO

TT
ED

:  
O

ct
 1

1,
  2

02
3 

- 1
1:

23
am

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 jo
sh

.b
ar

cu
s

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

SITE SECTIONS

C4.0

Exhibit A

N - 1 - 8



TOTAL TRACT

LE
LA

N
D

 (5
5'

w
) A

VE
.

S. LOOP STREET

DELMAR (80'w)  BLVD.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

D
EL

M
AR

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D
 &

 L
EL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y,

 M
O

 6
31

30

LO
CA

L 
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

/P
LA

T 
FO

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

66
00

\2
19

66
81

\6
68

1.
3\

C
iv

il\
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y\
66

81
.3

_b
as

e.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
05

.0
-E

XI
ST

IN
G

 R
U

N
O

FF
 M

AP
  P

LO
TT

ED
:  

O
ct

 1
1,

  2
02

3 
- 1

1:
23

am
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 jo

sh
.b

ar
cu

s

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

EXISTING RUNOFF
MAP

C5.0

PRE-DEVELOPED RUNOFF: 20-yr; 20-min STORM

PAVEMENT = 1.33 Ac x 3.70 cfs/Ac = 4.92 cfs
ROOF = 0.45 Ac x 6.00 cfs/Ac = 2.70 cfs
GRASS = 0.20 Ac x 1.78 cfs/Ac = 0.36 cfs

TOTAL EXISTING RUNOFF = 7.98 c.f.s.

Exhibit A

N - 1 - 9



LE
LA

N
D

 (5
5'

w
) A

VE
.

S. LOOP STREET

DELMAR (80'w)  BLVD.

TAP PER MAWC
STANDARDS.

8" FULL FLOW
FIRE METER

EXISTING GRANITE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

EXISTING CONCRETE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

EXISTING CONCRETE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

ACCESSIBLE RAMPS
@ DRIVEWAYS
(TYPICAL)

BIKE RACK
(TYP)

SIDEWALK PLANTING
AREA. SEE PLANTING

PLAN

CONCRETE PAVERS
AT RETAIL PATIO

EXISTING POST TOP
STREET LIGHTS TO
BE REINSTALLED.

ST. LOUIS WALK OF
FAME STAR PLACARD

(TYP)

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

D
EL

M
AR

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D
 &

 L
EL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y,

 M
O

 6
31

30

LO
CA

L 
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

/P
LA

T 
FO

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

66
00

\2
19

66
81

\6
68

1.
3\

C
iv

il\
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y\
66

81
.3

_b
as

e.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
06

.0
-P

R
O

PO
SE

D
 R

U
N

O
FF

 M
AP

  P
LO

TT
ED

:  
O

ct
 1

1,
  2

02
3 

- 1
1:

23
am

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 jo
sh

.b
ar

cu
s

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

PROPOSED RUNOFF
MAP

C6.0

POST-DEVELOPED RUNOFF: 20-yr; 20-min STORM

PAVEMENT = 0.47 Ac x 3.70 cfs/Ac = 1.74 cfs
ROOF= 1.42 Ac x 6.00 cfs/Ac = 8.52 cfs
GRASS = 0.09 Ac x 1.78 cfs/Ac = 0.16 cfs

TOTAL PROPOSED RUNOFF = 10.42 c.f.s.

DIFFERENTIAL RUNOFF = 10.42 cfs - 7.98 cfs = 2.44 cfs

PURSUANT TO MSD CONCEPTUAL REVIEW - 'BACK TO GRASS' EVALUATION REQUIRED

EXISTING BACK TO GRASS = 1.98 Ac x 1.78 cfs = 3.52 cfs

DIFFERENTIAL RUNOFF ' BACK TO GRASS' = 10.42 cfs - 3.52 cfs = 6.90 cfs.

STORMWATER DETENTION REQUIRED FOR 2-yr; 24-hr & 100-yr; 24-hr STORM EVENTS.

CHANNEL PROTECTION NOT REQUIRED BY MSD, BUT TO BE PROVIDED .

Exhibit A

N - 1 - 10



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

NB20240108-02

TXT 23-05 – Application for a Zoning Text Amendment to amend the City’s Fence 
Regulations to prohibit tarps to be used as fence material. 

John L. Wagner                                                       Planning and Development                    

New Business Bill 9535 yes

City Manager concurs with the Plan Commission and recommends approval.

N/A

N/A

At the Plan Commission meeting on December 6, 2023, the Plan Commission voted 
unanimously to approve TXT 23-05 as presented. 
 
 
 
                                                             

Attached are the Plan Commission Transmittal Letter, Staff Report from the December 6, 2023 
Plan Commission meeting - amended to include for the City Council the Plan Commission's 
recommendation, and a Draft Bill 9535. 

Encourage High-quality Growth

City Manager, Gregrory Rose January 8, 2024

N - 2 - 1



  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
December 6, 2023 
 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE: Zoning Text Amendment – TXT 23-05 

 

Dear Ms. Reese, 

At a meeting on December 6, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. in the 5th Floor Council Chambers at 
City Hall (6801 Delmar Boulevard) the Plan Commission considered the application of 
the City of University City to amend Section 400.1260 of the Zoning Ordinance to 
prohibit tarps to be used as fence material. 
  
By a vote of 6 to 0, the Plan Commission recommended approval of the Zoning Text 
Amendment. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 
 

Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

N - 2 - 2



 
 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

MEMO 

City Council 
 

Meeting Date January 8, 2024 

File Number TXT 23-05 

Council District n/a 

Applicant City of University City 

Request Approval of Text Amendment to amend the City’s Fence Regulations to 
prohibit tarps to be used as fence material.  

 

 
Comprehensive Plan Conformance:  
[  ] Yes  [  ] No      [X] No reference 
 
Staff Recommendation:    
[X] Approval [  ] Approval with Conditions [  ] Denial 
 
Attachments: 

A. N/A 
 
 
Zoning Code Text Proposed to be Amended 
Section 400.1260, Fence Materials, consists of subsections A and B, as outlined below. The proposed 
amendment is in bold red type. 

Division 7, Fence Regulations 

Section 400.1260 Fence Materials. 
A. Except as otherwise provided for in Subsection (B) of this Section, fence material shall be that 

which is designed and intended for use in fence installations, including decorative masonry (e.g., 
brick, stone, or textured and pigmented concrete). All fences shall be maintained in a structurally 
sound condition and otherwise in a neat and clean appearance. 

B. Barbed or razor wire or tarps or tarp-like material shall not constitute any part of a fence in any 
residential or "PA" zoning district. In all other districts, barbed or razor wire may be attached to 
the fence, above six (6) feet. 

 
Staff Analysis 
It is the City’s intention with this Text Amendment to strengthen the fence regulations by prohibiting a 
tarp or similar type material to be used as fence material, either as a fence itself or incorporated into an 
existing fence, such as a chain link fence. See Figure 1 for an example of the type of material the 
amendment seeks to prohibit.  

N - 2 - 3



TXT 23-05 
Page 2 of 2 

Figure 1. Fence material proposed to be prohibited through TXT 23-05.

Plan Commission Meeting 
At the Plan Commission meeting on December 6, 2023, the Plan Commission voted unanimously to 
approve TXT 23-05 as presented. 

Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the Text Amendment, TXT 23-05. 

N - 2 - 4



Page 1 of 2 

INTRODUCED BY: DATE:   

BILL NO.:  9535     ORDINANCE NO.: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ZONING CODE SECTION 400.1260 OF THE UNIVERSITY 
CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO FENCE MATERIALS, BY ADDING PROVISIONS 
PROHIBITING TARP FENCES IN RESIDENTIAL AND PUBLIC ACTIVITY IN 
RESIDENTIAL AND PUBLIC ACTIVITY (“PA”) ZONING DISTRICTS. 

        WHEREAS, Chapter 400 (Zoning Code) of the University City Municipal Code divides the City 
of University City, Missouri (City) into several zoning districts and establishes standards therein to 
which land, buildings, structures and their uses must conform; and 

        WHEREAS, in a meeting held on December 6, 2023, the City Plan Commission examined a Zoning 
Code text amendment to Section 400.1260 by adding provisions prohibiting tarp fences in residential 
and public activity (“PA”) zoning districts; and 

      WHEREAS, due notice of a public hearing to be held by the City Council in the City Council 
Chambers at City Hall at 6:30 p.m. on January 22, 2024, was duly published on January 7, 2024 in the 
St. Louis Countian, a newspaper of general circulation within the City; and 

      WHEREAS, the public hearing was held at the time and place specified in said notice, and all 
suggestions or objections concerning the text amendment to the Zoning Code of the City were duly heard 
and considered by the City Council. 

        NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY 
CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

        Section 1.    Zoning Code Section 400.1260 of the University City Municipal Code, relating to fence 
materials, is hereby amended by adding provisions prohibiting tarp fences in residential and public 
activity (“PA”) zoning districts, so that said Section, as so amended, shall read as follows: 

Section 400.1260. Fence Materials. 

A. Except as otherwise provided for in Subsection (B) of this Section, fence material shall be that
which is designed and intended for use in fence installations, including decorative masonry (e.g.,
brick, stone, or textured and pigmented concrete). All fences shall be maintained in a structurally
sound condition and otherwise in a neat and clean appearance.

B. Barbed or razor wire, or tarp or similar material, shall not constitute any part of a fence in any
residential or "PA" zoning district. In all other districts, barbed or razor wire may be attached to
the fence, above six (6) feet.

Section 2.    This ordinance shall not be construed so as to relieve any person, firm or corporation 
from any penalty incurred by the violation of Section 400.1260 of the University City Municipal Code, 
nor bar the prosecution of any such violation. 

N - 2 - 5



Page 2 of 2 
 

        Section 3.    Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall, 
upon conviction thereof, be subject to the penalties provided in Section 400.2570 of the University City 
Municipal Code. 
  
        Section 4.    This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as provided 
by law. 
 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this 22nd day of January, 2024.  
 
 
                                                                                      ____________________________ 
                                                                                                               Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________ 
            City Clerk 
 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
             City Attorney 
 

N - 2 - 6


	E2 - 2023-12-11 Draft Reg Minutes.pdf
	None
	Resolutions
	Blank Page

	E3 - 2023-12-20 Special Draft Minutes -  VIRTUAL.pdf
	Introduced by Councilmember McMahon
	3. BILL 9534 - AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF A TRACT OF LAND TO BE KNOWN AS "LOCAL UNIVERSITY CITY."

	J3 - First Watch - Public Hearing.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	K1 - First Watch - Agenda Item R.pdf
	COPY

	K2 - Westgate  R.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	K3  - Tree Trimming 2024.pdf
	COPY
	PR24-04  Recommendation and Bid Tab.pdf
	PR24-04  Recommendation
	Bid Tabulations PRF24-04

	Blank Page

	M1 - Bill 9532 - Text Amendment.pdf
	M1 - Cover Form - TXT 23-04 (Subtext).pdf
	COPY


	M2 - Bill 9533 - Map Amendment  Red  R.pdf
	4. Preliminary Plan.pdf
	SCAN2023-10-1112.05.476681
	6681.3_base-C02.0-EXISTING ALTA SURVEY
	6681.3_base-C02.0-EXISTING ALTA SURVEY

	6681.3_base-C03.0-PRELIMINARY-FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
	6681.3_base-C03.0-PRELIMINARY-FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

	6681.3_base-C04.0-SITE SECTIONS
	6681.3_base-C04.0-SITE SECTIONS

	6681.3_base-C05.0-EXISTING RUNOFF MAP
	6681.3_base-C05.0-EXISTING RUNOFF MAP

	6681.3_base-C06.0-PROPOSED RUNOFF MAP
	6681.3_base-C06.0-PROPOSED RUNOFF MAP


	5. Bill  - Subtext Map Amendment.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	M2 - Cover Form - REZ 23-02 (Subtext).pdf
	COPY


	M3 - Bill 9534 - Plat Consolidation.pdf
	Blank Page
	M3 - Cover - SUB 23-02 (Subtext).pdf
	COPY


	J1 - TXT 23-04.pdf
	COPY

	J2 - Public Hearing for REZ 23-02.pdf
	COPY

	L3 - University Hills.pdf
	COPY

	L1 - SDG Housing Partners  R.pdf
	COPY

	L2 - Comp Plan Changes.pdf
	Cover Form - Comp Plan Changes.pdf
	COPY


	N2 - TXT 23-05 (Fence Regulations).pdf
	COPY

	N1 - Preliminary Plan Resolution (Subtext)  R.pdf
	COPY
	4. Preliminary Plan.pdf
	SCAN2023-10-1112.05.476681
	6681.3_base-C02.0-EXISTING ALTA SURVEY
	6681.3_base-C02.0-EXISTING ALTA SURVEY

	6681.3_base-C03.0-PRELIMINARY-FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
	6681.3_base-C03.0-PRELIMINARY-FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

	6681.3_base-C04.0-SITE SECTIONS
	6681.3_base-C04.0-SITE SECTIONS

	6681.3_base-C05.0-EXISTING RUNOFF MAP
	6681.3_base-C05.0-EXISTING RUNOFF MAP

	6681.3_base-C06.0-PROPOSED RUNOFF MAP
	6681.3_base-C06.0-PROPOSED RUNOFF MAP



	2024-01-08 Draft Council Agenda.pdf
	3. BILL 9534 - AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF A TRACT OF LAND TO BE KNOWN AS "LOCAL UNIVERSITY CITY."
	Resolutions




